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75 faeelt, 9 weady, 2024

Yo A R ik R nifdwr @aw 7)) (@aes) R, 2023

¥. fruwsmEiu/16/3/29/0089/2017-Sst-fius.—orw fAfar e e G srfeerr
afarfaaw, 2013 (2013 T 23) #F¥ 9T=T 52 FT IT-LTRT (1) F ATT T6q ITHT IT-GTT (2) F G (T.) (),
(®), () =T () ST T&T AT HT TINT Fd gU, dae [er Af==amaes oiw @ srresor gagrr
Yo fafer faffemaes i A wrfaeor (Fowr [t fFaw 2015 § doem w39 ¥ oo Aafefaa
= a9 g, 9a: -
1. = AfF=wt #r doaw [AfSr Efaames s e e (@ [fen) (Femas) f&fF=m, 2023 Fzr
ST
2. T QITERIT TSI H 3 THT9A 6l At & 93 gl

3. Yo e e siv fGwm wfeeer (Gew @) &fH=w, 2015 #, 999-999 9T 700
Terrterd (38 T 'qed v & w7 § 9af9q) § Feferfa werree o 7o 8-

965 G1/2024 Q)
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ST :

e R & R 1 % so-RfRaw (1) 4, Rt ¥ sg #r Femger yieerfia G

"Rt 7 STed due fAfat it wuraE, e s AfFeme qor stseraret & fZai & wear A g1

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

1.
V.

er fafaawt ¥ fRfaaw 2% so-R_ffaa (1) 4,
g (@) "HrErd i # Ferge sioeenfia BT smo
"(@)"wrrET fam" w7 o 3w fam 7 g o few sremm w9 % oo Feferfa oy o w2 2 -
(i) =TT & F ATtET orET;
(ii) =TT 3T a7e aTone % forw Tt e, s
(iii) TR S A"
g (1) FergaT sRenfie BT s

"(I) "SATATAT SATEFRTLN" AT T AT o STy, Faay, P, Renfaaer, afw=w, AReer
ST TTTErERTor T ST ST & SAqATA & forg ger fAfer % [Haers dea gy artva Jor [ie &
U FHATT T 8"

g (1) ¥ a1g, Fafafew de siet sta, s

"(TT) "Tere AT F qEew SRR § o wTAATE Ay, e Haer Ay, g Jiew
STErRT<Y, HT AT AT ATTFEY, HATAT THE ST AT Aterahrey, Faers dea gy 91taa #ir
g =T<h T doe ATe & U o=y ffaamrey fSvg STTerheor geT A1i8d i &1 Aaer & S aswar
g, Tt ghn”

S () g€ S,

g% (2.) ¥ are e g sist smom, seiq

“(=.%) =a fAfRFw % waee & forw S e 7 orf srfafaay i ey 12 % Jga afivarog T
Th | ZOT, e ITfEeaor gy SATHerTed st e ST oiHe 8"

g< (F) F Rergar yiaerta B#FRr s :

"(@)(i) "o S F weam At # orf ¥ MeerE 6ed, g FHATR 7 ey . fF AR
Sraer HEelt a7 TEen & AqaT Haers 5 o2aET il UF AT UF F AT [Haerd w1 37 3,

(ii) "ITATSTR T ATAR" FT o1 FaT A =aw7, 2013 &t grr 2(51) F qTgd TATvT 39+

T TEEh T HTTHE & g

g< () & Rugar sfaenfoa B s :

"(®) "Tead (F ATEd)" T o FOAT ATAHTH, 2013 FT 9T 2(57) F Tgq & AT qRATIT H
g

g (<) ST Y FieATST i Frerga sientia R e

"(ST) "IRIISTE" T o AE T T § S o ffd # wa efpdt oot # A e AT e
ATer T Bl 37T TSI o (o0 (A< IT=aT orat 0 92 Far ar;"

e fafrat ¥ fafaaw 2 & su-fRfaew (2) g2 s,
e fAffawt %1 "R 3 ge s,
e ARt F fBfRaw 4 w1 [Remgar sienfea BT s
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“4. GSITHOT B AT UH SIS .- (1) Tor fer & araists & &9 § Fd 77 F7 Togh STaaF,
TrerEReoT ZeT At & o = s o= 2 a7 Referfed i @1 #3992 saad ST T TadT

g

) = fafaaet % sava Ry g o) @i
(@) == I 0 e o I i i T o o |

(2) e & foro === whraT § R 70 g § a0 FT i o9& F qra-ars, aqgHr 0 H
ATy srfaeT saee g aied sraes &har s’

VI. ex Rt F R 5 5 Mg sfaenfa BT s
“5. AT F ATET saed.- (1) TFTH F q8q F aeed Fofoiag § & & o oraw @
AT T ST HhaT B

(%)

(@)

()
(=)

(®)

(2)

STT 3Tq0T 3 MY ToreH ITTEreaeTr g7 sufera &1 Jgi & ;

aterfaem, AR, fRearfader, ofvas, Rt e wfesor g S s Afacen &
TTALTHT % ATET gl &

AT, A AT G TH( HT § FTAT TERTT AT AT Tohed Agl 13T AT &;

e #T Aty ux, =9 At % qgq My amar a9ee &Y =9 93 o & T2 =399
SRt % ded et arar ATest # 2T Al wdr g; AT

TTTEEReoT 7 g2 § Ag a7 AT ATHETATH AT YT ThAT & HAEAT (AR & fBa | Tal
El

I-fafae (1) & AT sramed ox ol siraes &1 e F39 & 98T, ITfErr raash

T T30 T T80T & HIa2 FEAT HT gL FA 6 (0 o H T gl

)

STgT ATaEa TAd T ATHE AT TEIA HLAT g T TEQT TAAT &l The Feel F T ST 2,

qT AT SAFAFd HT IT FTUAT A UHT AEATHIT & TH qY ol Aatd qah het | sireed 9%
BRI EREZ RS I

Vil. e lafagat & ffaaw 6 F FMergar sfaerfaa e s

“6. AT AT TTEHOT Hl T&IT FAT- (1) TIEFW, AT 6 e X G=r 7 F ow ==
HATH AT H ST Tk AT T ETEIHTOT TEA HLA 6l W7 FL FqHT 2

(2) MaEF F IT TaT THAHAT % HIA T 0 §qr8 % forw U =1 i T8 Jeqq
AT g, e afe srarems g1 av ITfEewaor il JEqia a7 |1 9He 2l

(3) SMEEA  Afad g & G &f 5 gadT | T off awqua afiaay & UF 9aad g & Ugg
3T & fia< A TIeeor &l T&qa H”

Vil geg fRAfaest & ffagw 7 f Fergar sfaefa G s :

“7. CEAT FT AT~ (1) e 92 A F2d TG0 A0, TEqrasil, FATAT T, TTHLAAT
ST SRR &T9aTett & A JcATae died aad g Teqd il TAT TAAT H TATAT HT TR
&, ST AT 6 T ITed AT AaeTF &l

(2)3u-fafF=w (1) F w=ee & for, srtesreor Bl off =afxe 1 a7 s el srfeerd o R 3

aRaT gl”

IX. wex Rt F R 8 it Murgar sfaenfie BT s :

“8. ITATT ATAES..~ (1) ATAEH &7 AT ATAEA HT [ty 9, dorq i & v o 9 § w1 F2A %
for Aferera ATMEET #7121 F3AT gRT-
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() Ffer warere (3fadt o To= 191 A7 fare) & F9 § 59 0= 6 w5 agwa Q@

(@) At =raarT afafate § e g & adg fed 5%, stoar s Jiagf $i @EaT 9,
T AT T fEfaames =i B arfesneor g fafaataa 2r;

() == IS T IAF AEEA FIA K I 8, TR UF AT UF  FIIF 99<h 3T AR
ATeET e f (A 9% WS & €9 H F1F FH0T & (o0 Gram A19e€ T Hd gl A& Fed 997
ATSF F Trogd HTh IUAX o AR & TH qTad Uk JTeFhTLl THATIT ATIT TEd FLAT g7 FoF
TSI o &9 § e e v e a7 o e 1 o B s,

(=) TR AT <6 =7 7 foger ar= A< aut § s auv & sifaw 9 9 § 77 7= #70E w0
T HHTCHF A€ T4 (95 ATforaa) AT s i fafy ow w7 & F9 afig #0g =07 it vew =
St g AR

(@) e o= A<t oot § & &9 & w9 i B=hr aut § w5 ggra a9 2 & e o= B a0t
¥ IS e g 7 2l

TISTEHRI.- TG BN AATq (i) IR Fle FUAT A@THA AHHT (T.OH.) F FTA 0 fohiT fFaer
FIATT FIAT 8, AT ATH-ZI 6 FEawort § 977 0 T TETT F ATA/ZT F ARSI Al A & TATAT
& o0 e-Aeha Y & 9ed SH TeagT™, TReed, 3T gTi=-atd a1 SehAT J9Taiisra oA srar
2l

(ii) AT ET AIAHT (3T TUH) % T I A [EaT0r q3m F3 aredl Hu+! & AT §, qTH-
g o feraeort ® 29T T ATH/ZT F SARST (I SATIH 3T Fl GISHY) Tl e 6 TATAN & o0
AT THIA SIE GeAgTd, TTe 37T gria-eAfd I STHATT FHTATSIT 7aT STTaT 31

() TTTEHTOT FIRT ¢ il T5 AT THAT o STTATIh (HFAT AT STt I QT FHLAT; 3T
() AT AT I THE ATTRET gt || H [iEe 'S qo 3t=a == )
(2) Fere TRTer T SITTSTeh, TTTereRaer T Aqard U e 97

(F) FAAT AT, 2013 F qga derd [fer 7 Foedt F ® § orfHer HO0 3T T6qh A7 | GO
fer emfoer wam

T ITTER0T & 92l & dsiigha qord Wter, A==t & =9 gerramt it sfesg=er £t Ot ¥ ang agi
i Srafer & Hiae o0 @< & AL H7 STIITAT HI,

(@) Ter e § g7 0T <ATH THE FUS TAF H A T4 (& AIoAd) T970 T@qT g
FT;

(M) AT Fam & e Ergeft ot g=T 37 a7 T A1 AT GgTaE HA=AT TAaT I ATt
& HTETH | AT Fohelt 1<k G AT ATHAT TRl 9 51T, AT a8 AT o JTg¥ Thel 39T & fohell F
FTIA & dgd TSiIehd gl STTaT Aal, Stehel AT il Tohed dTiar verd =ier § 39 fAfer &1 v oo *
FrgaY TTaerd & Afae 7 g1 7 ag Tiaera o ST srfa=aw, 1938 (1938 &7 4) & YTaL™I & dgd
AT AT FAT T SAqAITSd FAT STaT g, ST AT offa g1l =0 3297 & forw ey Feer &
TUET g FCHIT T AT~ TTEEE FIH 97 3% 3297 & o7 I gy ST [,
oA, ofo=, A siv fAfF<er  sqam g,

() AT wam & o [er § Afefaas & aqar Faaq AT AT 6| w1 T8 S o
&THAT B,

() g Fa & o @i F#07 § w0 g=re gtqerd R, s=ax Qe 2

(@) gt Fwam G e g Efaateg Gt € s daw [te § #e =3 st agraed Fuer
F are| I T oft fEdt Reerdy o fe=or ar =i 75 2

FOSYREOT ; FR=ror srata ot srferfRae, 2013 it =T 2(27) F siasta afvsriue;
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(®) TE gATEa wo & dord e & Faas dea &1 #5 off e STiesor § asiiga el o=
dora AT % Aers wee 1 Aas 981 grm,

(3) e AfSerEaTer sfdsr a7 e a1 =R §% § S afdea ar sfew s EmE off
=T 97 T TR €

(@) e fAfe wafafeat &1 g% F3 & fow 9fEasy § g9 arer aRaadr & %A AAdr aed
AATF  AFTECAAT, AHTIT AR, TAAT TTATRT, TOMTTerai 3T Thrareft & arr derg =fer =
qiErgT T&T FC

U] SAFETT F 29 & AT ¥ ag 9= ¥ are duw e awiida awerfs, g g, g=ar
STRITRIT, STl 37 TTRATel & |79 Taa o &9 8 9 Al T AT HT;

(=1) gt o fF daa [fer & Ao § F 79 F w7 a=r9 giaerd ot fEhT Fast siv d&atea

& | Y9aY AT 3,

(2) g gAteaa e & Sow [Afe F qeg FHArnT & O suterd o= #§ YTEiE TRIars #iT

EREENAF

e q9 e T s ATIETET, S OHed FHANL €, TEHr & AqHeT & a1, T o= qew

FHATL o FTIT [ HLA o (U AT 6T ST qha T 8, 31T

(3) == giafaa wam & G [ie & 3@ g Afgwrt o= || § [ide S o 3ta

ZfE gl

(3) UF IrasEF ST IU-FAFIH (1) F @ (V) ¥ SU-AfHaw (2) F @2 () ¥ (3) ¥ iy G €t
HATAEE &l T ol FdT &, qT qg 86 FHILUI T ZATAT & gU TTTEHIT | Ze T T g

(4) == fafa=at & et ara & 21 gu AT strea® gy wilt 75 et o e 0 9T w1 A AfIE
Tel 2l

(5) ez forfaa =7 § &1 fhu ST arer o & stfsEraret & {a § UH ge @ g@ar gl 37
gffRerfaa # grferseor UHT stfafish ord 9T |ohaT & ST USiisheor JHTIS Y& F:3d & fou
st=ra Taeft sy

(6) ToET oY sTeraes gTT qT=TaT ATHES! T G HA & S § TTTeH0r F7 [ sifad grm

(7) A ATEEA STHT HLA AT qTAAT AIAGST B T FA T & A &l 490 [ F Tt 6 &9
H T FA 7 [Aigd Afwe A8l Yo Fhar sroam”

X. e RAfagat & ffaaw 9 f Femgar sfaerfaa et s

“9. USTIRTUT THTITTS YT HA ol TTHAT, GSHhT S[oah ST TSTIEH<OT THTOTGS it I9QT i S(afy. -
(1) T 978 % ISR % FAT 6 ForT IIfeeor A T § ATH e 7 qedihd o [HaHi §
ATy arrar AmEst o fRenfaeent & Ratia ==+ s & sam BT smom)

(2) (F) TTTEEHRTOT =7 97q & 9q€ 2+ 92 & sfaes qoe [fe &1 s a9 F e e g, 98 v
TRt i ordt & orefie, ST 9 [Meifia &% ahar §, saas w1 9o [t 775q we % fow [Agie o=
ST T Tohd T 2l

(@) Yerd fAfer TfET S 9T (ITAT AIEEST T T Feeh) oY AT 11§ HiE a0 w70 3fT o& &
T TS & AATAGT G0 e ITH &I 9%, T dqaEr [ § [Afee srew # deow e
SIS il G Fd gU I TS( 0T FHTITI & FT T &l

(3) Tere TATer &1 SITLT ISHeRoT THIUTTS ad T 98 LT ST qoh 6 AT gIT (Aeitaa a7 e
Tel T ST
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XI.

(4) Tore Tfer, dSiieheor SHTOTTS ST g A Ot ' gy "e A qary & T AT IREed OF
FT TN TH AGTT T Bg Aeld & SATET T2 6 (o0 forfed &9 § F0T 3 AT 9 TIieeor gen
AT T ST Tl g
(5) ITATST T TH TTTERTO & Fora fAfer i TITIaT 3 AT F o0 saess e T HiTT
Tl

er fafaawt ¥ fafaew 9 % amr, Mufefee Rt ot g s, suafq:

“O. Usfieor & I we ad.- (1) For e v e dstisreor saorr Aot ot & srefie g
ERIGE

(@) TS S gere fAfer, wrfeerr gy S srferfRem, R, B, Rorfadern, o= e
e F qga AT qm=ar AMESt #7 g€ 0T AT H337| Tgd F T =T AT FFawr § #rg off
FERTT Taa, SEeT ST IS0 THOT 9T Iidghd TATT T2adT &, SOl GAAT ATTEHI0T AT
uag o % sfrae 3+ grf;

@) IS S dor fAfer T o =it F weaam F forw doe A F ' 7 asfiswer i = we
T O AT F 3T 29T UF A g T Hl a1ed F & [0 AEaeTF Fars AT HaA
S0 &;

(m e [ # s F2 79 (g /o) 1= FE T G970 @l S,

(=) STITSTE ST Yot fAfYr, deor ThRAT #T YaH_ Fd gwT gdT At | Afwararet & B wv
AT TE ST Trarsreht, dore e & fAerst ot gefea srieat a7 sfSerarsi & uF @Fow a9 #ir
2t & zahara A7 Fohelt sgi=ra s | F=T0T;

(=.) Yo [fer stfsramarsti & Bai # a7 gRfaa w2 & g 93y, Fasger #&7 IS0 &R g7
T TTCeTq 3T,

(=) e At == fF=wt % qga My = wrfeemwor gr Aafea arfeat & |arr v gw=tiar &
AT &% FH=Tar 1 odt FT 9TAT B,

(B) IS S derd [T ot et &1 Mags Fed 980T I 91 dqad, A¥ad, T 3l gaer
F I H TG a9 TERIT i IIISFI0r it 9F AqAtd & o1, FA 0 TORAT & dga a1
STTErR0T AT LT T TUTAT 7479 & HITIa UH S2T AT AT &l q167 & €T | AT AG9THAT 6
AT Fohelt 37T 39T o ToIT Yoqa AT ATAT Tl FH,

() TS o Yo Aty starfRaw, R, e, oA, o=t s srtesreer g S
T o [AEer F YraeTE A qre e, o asfiseer yuroresr F Aete i srafer g oft
fafqaw 34 % T Mfee asft FEf F T I TF AT AT TEATAS 6 AL 6 &0 A7 6 I
AT Bl

(=7) e TRfer, STfereneor, TEr SO SISl ~aT, ATSETaT Sl o g egedi ar Haer Sitaar, FHaer
Iot, faha fRufa i Yo =iyt & aram== araet & 9 § 99 AT § 9340, g, T {7 a9y
T AT AT A AT HRM T [, sriesnor gy {aiig sreq o7 srataswmar § S qg=1 V
¥ fafie afta stafera ga sfsararstt v @i s,

(37) TSI FHT-gHT 97 g [Afe it aigdaar a1 Riaear f autar ®am gfw G o e
h | T Afaataaany <@t STy 8, ar vt gore fAfer 7 frly e e F 9§ rfdewr
T T AT F:am,

() (i) TTATSTH (AT ATATSTH I HT AT FEA ATAT TS ZTT) AT dore At grer aaweiar fet &

FEATa AT derd ter 7 == & foru Merfertera &t furfa & sfereror &t 7@ As{r S it St
(F) Teor AT o 9y F w9 # griRAta § a1 g T ST 8
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XIl.

(@) e fAfer o GTRTT FOAT 7 T i AT 8 AT

() erfarfie & emeT 24 F qEd wfhdy @ ardE = Ao dow [ty § e eifew # g
FEATH (ST FRer==elt & Igam);

(ii) I wiera | St = AwATar Ted § wedriad ufiaay & forw s siw g fAfer g,
ST @ &, STTereheer it O Jspdr o v S,

g g TS & SraeatRar S § SURE % ST wis o daary, ded Y gy | fI= i w
AT STTEheor il gi=a o ST,

(iiii) Forr ffer o W FH=TERTOT AT Yo srferawrdy | et ot aaerra i gEEr Trteer #r dwg Tt
F fia< <7 STt

TSHIO- "FET FOAT" FT AT FAAT AfAHTw, 2013 (2013 FT 18) FT =T 2(45) F ATEX
gfearfoa grm;

(3) Hea [fer srqg=T VI F AfSE e |@fEar 1 squme £,

(3) Uora fAfer oReT o 9er F°T AT g w1 Aat i FERET HT - g wrF R TS
el TTTERTOT ol TATTHT & &I FhaT ST,

(z) dorer e, wrfersreor g ARt Yo =Rt a1 fAfeat & geafaa ottt i sesr w e
e T tater § 619 A1 T ;

(v1) St ey, ATsaT qrAT A, ASSHIRNT A1, ATHT Hae9d FIe, 3§ 9L AN AT T 1

AT TFHATH AAFH (TOATAT), Tediad Remfager, Jh THddde, e Haih o 39
TATST & for aTferreer g ST TP 9o IOrTelt =9me & AT ¥ SATfeadl < arfea ifd &

AT T,
(@) "aw Ffa, wfeer g AREfET G o= dam [fe & w8 gorer oiEr feer a8t
TEAT;

(1) "oaw At 1 e srfdreraarer sTfeseor AT SAtSwers A1 =y dF § S giaerd ar 3ae atdw
Tiehet OSTt &1 =107 A7 ST A5l g, 3T

(F) Uor fATer STfeReor T ATI=AT ST T % T A IHHI FAqH qA1ed e Shre &l
raeT T2 Hl”

Hex fafaast ¥ fafaew 10 = Rergar sfaenfaa BT s

“10. W1 F T FEATASHOL- (1) TRATAA = 2 T 98, Yo [ o7 a7ar & aro-arr
Frerferfara Ta=tat & fFoarfea o -

(F) =1 XI H A @ g Gore Yorrett = & |/ [ gdg" a9,

(@) T G TOITAT +ITH o | -THe [0 GHAIT;

(1) AT IX H RS srqaw Af9wers & a9 qoAd;

(=) =T VI F S o Em F Afseradre st aor o =t 3% & 9T G FIAT; 3T
(F) WeAEAT F AT HIS AT THATAT AT AT AT ITFARor grer fAfEe B s #ehar 2

(2) TW=ATAT T ATEAT I HeAedT & o= oheft off 7a9s o 9o ¥, T8 ITfeeeor gy v Ayt &
o srrfre o Srosm, St Aot sifaw i aregsRT gl

(3) e AT W] FAT F q@q UH ATARIAT | MALTF ATHIGT ITH FAMT T G G,
SEATALHATAT I ATAFT e, Bee FEATAT TTH FeeA, Fellaerael &I i, TIFaqL Seeicierd
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ST 3T FHTT ATHAT | FATST T TETEAT o T TEATASA 00T STTATIAT T STATAT R, qAT1h 36
FIEA & dgd AT 9o Hfer F =7 § F71 F33 § Fle A49q7 7 311"

X111 ge fffgwt & fffaw 11 i Fergar sfaenfia B s
"1 AT FT T~ (1) TAEF & F2T  fow Jom [t v o= gafda afafatast *
TEATASITRLOT o T g1 9%, Herd At arfereeer & 2@ g0 w3 &7 9197 9 HEET

(2) AT TE FLA FT T/ T ARG G99, Gorg FAfer g 1y < 3 39 are ver Af & = §
TR FTA o [oIT ATT9TF ATHIGT ST AAT & AT 39 T F FIA & [0 g FA AT A=AAT et
ft qrg 1 Forspaar & 7mg 721 |

(3) SITTersRor =0 a1 & | g4 9% f T [fer, Torm et % waee % o spoar @=ree 9% #3
¥ foro gatsa g, aaeT IV & i wrea § S S & "sreamm T F#73 Fw IHIOE” S w7
TqHAT g, Toreeh STaTe Gore fAfer sraet srafafer(iatatem) wr =rera Ham”

XIVv. gex fafagat w1 A 12 ge s,

XV. &g At & FRw 13 # Regar siaeetea B s
“13. aTf¥ .- o [, s 11 H e an S & srfderr grr gt e st oaear g,
ToIF fAATEr F 918 & Weid & 109 T T I7 ISteheor yHmora = QU i o &9 &t & fiqe, arfus
[, IH T AR AT 3 FI Flgd, TTTEEHIT & TTE STHT FH3T

XVI.  Heg ARt & [fREw 14 w1 Rergar sfaenfea BT s :
“14. TR X Faer RemRcer- (1) T [ sifSararsti & Feamr gq i gy S e
TEerTAaert & aTe o ST &1 Taee Ham
(2) 12+t T fAfer sorer a7 strewet =7 F ATHTATS FT 9 IIEA 6 qT8L (A9 qgl H
(3) ATHETAT FIRT TSN ST ATAT FTSITL-ATLTRT Tl G 6 TATAT ATH FT e AqHgd T L
ATATE Tl Tl
(4) A9 AT ATH F Togw ATHTAT % I FOT Her 7 THT Shrat 7 [erer w2 #7 Ao
EIT ST STfarsReeT gTeT srfer e ¥ < @ £
(5) Terw ffer srfdramarsti = wrfdror gy At snfeq awt § Fae w2 &1 f@wer J== Fa,
Sraw & ag |71 aiaad sfeRgi=ra awart sfagiaat & Herer w2 gemm”

XVIl.  qex fafagst ¥ e 15 & Rergar sfaenfa B s
“15. ThW ATRAAT T Todiahd.- LT T9F YOS =ATH F A9 9T ¥ Gord Thiei & dga derd i
FTT SETaa Sied AT STagfaat T qeaisd T g7 ST et Qe=aert & Fqare
SO

XVIII. gex fafaasi & fafaw 16 =i fergar sfaeerioe far s :

“16. AT ATNA, ARG e X Trae™ F g fFawqet amEe.- (1) Fae 3= & = i
arfeqat a1 gfagaa & @99 |, 9 AT, IHHT 60T ST ITaeT, ITTAFI0r T ST
fEerRaert & sraTe § grml

(2) Yot e, Faer I & A= At qg=W A T2 ariEadt A1 Siagtaat f R wa s g
T TOTTAT =ITH % HEART & UHT Aq {70 aeell SUTT &[F ek ITTAFHT0r T i F”

XIX. e et & A 17 # Fergar st B s :

“17. sETafRat i Af¥e.- (1) Tam [fer, Sorm St % g=raq it sErEteat i Sty a970
TET ST e aAterteae, 1961, ot srfarfaae, 2013 qor Rt off o= FF % Y=g &1
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AIATAT FIATHT FHIT ST TH TG 6 AL AT & F FAAT T&TF HT, ST TTEFI FRT i
ERIS I

(2) Tom fAfer wes = % foro @, sfeemt s searast f st aga sam @l arfs
TrSTATsH & ATt it Rfa 7 @t sie fAouer fsoor G s o, i 7fe safvere sz seamEs doe
fAfer & OSiha FAT@T & T80 T I 8, T 3746 a1< H AT T4 AR G T 376 AT
gi=a T sroem dere S aEiaT, afverdt siv seqrEasit & @ 67 3T F o @i avg
o e grm
(3) Tere ffer, wrferseor gy ertfia st =t F1 are Fam)”

XX.  wex fafagat ¥ Rt 18 i Mergar sfaenfa e smor
“18. FSATSN & foIT Aaer iR e (TATdT).- (1)Wer SRt it Toi® e 1 g 9o7 39 w07
g
(2) Tt Aty =R T [Maer Sied god i TUET Fedeh df [arer 9 FohEr el o Jear |

i Y e sfea &1 frarfse w Fam)
ISR - [Haet fed &1 o7 g oaiad (QeM=aell & TIae {FA I ok Ted (/TH1AT)} T
THIH T AT T T,
() T greant § STTAe B
(i) =3I T00AT & 77eaw F et Merer saem e,
(i) == IRAT & ATeAT & Agia Afewers s i aredias® & Aqae [Saiteredl oY Hoee
9T

(iiii) =T e 9¥ 0.03% T SIS Lok AT TTIRRT0T T 47 1€ Srqafa % oy
(iv) ITTERTOT IRT STHT AT G TOITAT +ATH [, 3T
(V) 39 9% AN T AT 4.
TAUAT 0T Y TFF Fgr SR S AT X F y=re i T )
(3). Yerar ffer wrfareor g Mgt awT & fiaw Tas FraanT &7 & o  § Joas o+ whi & forg
T % TAUAT Al 0T S AT FHT
(4). SATITT WTEIT 37T Tr= At & o T sAfeeraarer sTissaor § I [=aer F g o7 gorq
At seas =T e & forg =ifua TAuat & sra 9% et w1 i 741 @ wam
(5). Tu= TAfer, TRH TATAT A TOET T FAA ATHAGATA ATHFHLIT Fl THAI GAAT & % [0
RrAETe 2T, Sreh e 9% sl ATer@are TTHseor g SATHaTarsti T TH1eAl 7 sfaed Y
THIHOT TH T STt 817

xXI. e RAfagat & gy 19 # Mefateaa F arr sfoenfta B s :
“19. Faer Taee Q.- (1) =T w=Te &t 7 F49rett & o Gord SRt & w9 § Haer J@e T goF
< T ZHETT T

(2) fHaer Jaem ok T FIA & ALl ST & w1 e, WTieeor gy ohar S s 7g
ATETaTat F 2 3T Yo TRl & =wafRyd e & o sraess awsr S arer q9a_ & defie

grm”
XXl 7ex et F ffge 20 Fr Rerger sfienfa B s
“20. Tfs RIS X sihegat &t RAiE.- (1) Yo At arfdeor geo s =7 ARt s

fEerRaert & ST aTe H, 98l oY Hewet adte o, Teg=t VI Ffurd sred § godh =i a9 & daer
H U faeqa arfus e a9 w3,
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Yor TS gT TenfAew e ST TE ST WOITSAT ST ZIRT T sfehetshl it fHafh STresReor

FRT ST ROTTHEeT 3 Tfa= # ST § gl

(2) Tora fAfer srfersReor gy Matha ader & S Shil & AT fEawor &7 sEhefor FTar i

et it Fare o fAfer & i Ravd 1 v Rear aanf T sireres waasr &7 7 T g

TUTTEAT =T 7 FaTeE 3

(3) Tore ey g

(F) s fa<f av $ir garty & fFfr 7 g G % Jiae o @7fa % e deo g Bfdea
sHIfe arfdes R (Fom =hmt & it fawor e siwas fae afga) 1 w53 & o
TP YT TUTAT =78 0 STHT THRAT SITUAT| S8 918 TP 9o TUITet =T &7 =aret s
Aot g SRt & fahr frawont #r /s 3o Tiagearee 3l

(@) LT G IUTAT ~ITH T fEoA ot &1, Tfe Fe l, 6 T1H 6 [9rer ¥ 9gg &0 6 qare &
frqe TaTaT T ST

(1) e st e i Aty i [t & qe GAT F Jiaw arfasor #r arfis R s qa fi S

(4) o FHAT FT TAFH AT I 3T TS G1aT U0H 3 (K97 FAT FeeHe) i uug 17 (WA

foiféT) 1 gy, a9T-a9T 9T SR ud Yo TR 9v an) daAr afafaaw, 2013 F agd

AT AT AT & TS 21T 3T 24 AT | TEIq Tal g

(5) yw A<t ag i garte i AT T 7s9 A0 & fiqe, yas whm # arhs {Rae i)

TIERITOrAT Faaeor TP Serd STt =378 T He<T & 1% o e 7 Jadrse 9% v Ear 4 Juare

ExR sl

(6) T arfts fare ar soer d@fera " daw [Afer g F=0a sfYeaare sifser &+

ATHETATAT T AN oI o o0 J&r= o Srosm) stfsyararst & foro wferm arer § 98 |Jie gen

Frfgu & arfts RAE dom [fer #F aaarse 9% Suasy g 3T arfus {de 1 aafcs 99 6T

srfereraTTer srfSreRTor 3 |rer |t BT ST

(7) At e dom fAfer o g Fate |§ Mear & forg Iuerse gl o Saehr U i faheft off

STHETAT T ATAHTH 2T HT FF F ATHAT Lo 6 qIAATT T2 ITAE FI3 ST

(8) e TATYr weus THTET HT TAIH & U Hgid & i< dAiq 31 A1 v 30 fodaw &7 e+t

JEETEE 9T ThRIH TIEHITOAT & [EAa<or & a7 A9+ Shig-are foeT siefera i fEawor #1 gare

FT

(9) 3u-fafa=w (9) ¥ iy sref-afie famT smmdifera R & v fEawor enffer giv, S arfeeor

FT et =R % "=Te w1 98t siw fAoger gfear Jam #39 F STeT F AraeT+ g

(10) Torm fafer gy watera =hwt $ arfts R § Aot & arfaet #1 fawor, @2 siv g=rmem

THE FTT THIOT 9 TR g, o Aeferfa e arfaeat § Saferd U S ot g

(@F)ehr  foh a3 sie seqereo, St e £ Rafa sie =i taued w1 92 i

3T A=uw ye= F#AT e

(=) st fatr shRarstt sie RfSes a=mT Me=on i aaimar siv sarasfiemr,

@marterfaam, Faw, AR, A R, geama R, €@ @i, aqae fifT i
AT AR FAT T ATATA; 3T

(%) AT FTEaT FT AT
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XX, gex At % [ 21 ge s,

XX1v. g fafqemt & f{fagw 22 # Regar sfoentg fEr s :
“22. o A % wder ST Frd.- (1) Yom =T 7 Taa= TRl F 29T, ATARIT F ITaeTL,
e, fafR, fRemfaden, oo, et s wrfesreor grer S fAafRcent qur wdr deorer sorreft
T ST o ITALTHI & FTATL, TR ST T G TOITAT =18 1T FeTia o & Haw
ERS s
(2) T TEIHT T <A TaerT TEIT YorT Torredt =me 67 e 7 gor fAfer g B s
(3) Horwr fAfer, g% awy AfY yaaw Farsi o I AT 1 T FGM, ATETdrst F qaraw 2a §
dI9 FaAT w1 Fagd Fxad g9 I=a qraer, Few, 9eay fee, qoaar, qread ST gasar
AT Tore fAter v wer FAerer A1 e | sfFard = & F=4T g

(4) T T=TEr TR, TEArferd TeEsl ST A STEh SHIMEY FHATRAT & [Ag<h Haml go = e
q FEATRAT, srfSrratsn ot stfdrepa safera, fSeeh fard are v € €, F Farher ¥ oo Rreer
BT 37T o9 FeAl & (o7 T &7 | SaTaag A IAETIT gl Gore [Hier & gsfisor SHorT %
fAeas a7 o ar sfseTarstt & RBar & geaT & o aTfeeor gR it I ATt wrdrs &
JTASE, TR FAT LT

(5) e Afer st FeaeAT T SIqA T 9TH SHRISAT & AT AAAT TATATETT HT GHAT HIT AL A
I o GTY-F7T THATT FIT TAT THE FHIATHT IMAAT Rl T FLA & [T TR HF ITAET
FTUAT

(6) Tere ffer arfarameor grer ST fafaa, et e, TR v =1 e a1 sy gt
F ST Aifee g T giaeT Tam Fw ¥q Aqed F foro Rarer fvig siw Yo =it ¥ @=TeE 9
AT TgiaTdl, ATHeE, Tres sfiT T&qTast Y&\ HT T97 g% 90T SAGETT il dq-aq [iaedr
gt Ham

(7) et fAfer == fAfF=mt, o Aeen e o=t F qga Irfersreor a1 g Sord JorTetT wATE gy
STUTErT ST ATATH ATATAT [XaTe TEqd HTT

(8) Tor ffer srf¥raTarstt & &e & U =T V # Mfae ade | 31 Yieeer grT [aiia adis &
AT T AT THe 0T HT|

(9) Ter fAter Marer s Tiferw yaaw & foro Maer afafy siw sifew yeae afafa S aaay ame
TEIAAT T ATATOIT AT T3 G341, F T Faed aqq=t X #§ [y § o zo% afaf=s v
Ieperor g, % ATHTRT ST qTrertas atata &7 | T F0m

(10) Tere ffer, sroe a1 Megd Fd q97 qa [fd & =7 § I g1 aret At = farer &
TIRATT 3T U ATHAT sl FROTE T8 T TOTTeAT #3T9 h7 FeT|

(11) e fAfer stae st 67 wfafataet & Seora [fer afafafet F fersar shw wageor gFfa
FIITI

(12) Tor ffer, T fAfer o saer # srisrararen & afafa=i ¥ Gaterd Gaar 6 T a1 i o=
TR=ror & F0T gEATer i LT FEATHET FAT S VR G=AT FT ITIAFIOT AT TG G TOITAT =T
T ToRelT 317 Fea®r & |7 ATAT FIT AT TRHT 3777 A o TGl % dgd STaT |l a9 27|

(13) Tora fAfer UH srvaTaad SiiY ATEet &I T 3T IHF ATATT FH FIT, ST ATTAETATSH 6 Fgar
T AT ® 0 9T+ 2l

(14) Tera fafer, sTferzor grT Meiia o, J&t oY Siasi F7 SR S
(15) Foret fAfer, TSI Sord SOTTRAT =T ZIRT T8 AT 31T TG sl THIEAT o T grm
(16) et fATer, TrETT T TOITRAT =ITE GTXT G99 ThTHT & FReq0 & e g
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(17) Foret ey, STTEReoT GIT o1e T sfeheror i fALreqvr & a7efie grm

(18) dera fAfer, St Suferfa srfeaa (Fr=irdt) & =9 § dsiiga g, 9+ [t seee sfatafeat &
FATT W@ & 70 ToTea Sl =97 o (Aaor gigd ToRT Sra€<=aT, AHelth, @Tdi &l a1 TER

(19) derer fafer gataw emae ugfaat & 9= F forw soey stfarfReer, 2013 % 98 U arasi=eF
FOAT TT AT THE TR0 HTIGE T T FTAATAT T [STEehl [SIEH AT ST TR %l g

(20) srfarfaas # gmT (20)(2)(F)(F) F A TTEFOT T TR it Aferg=ar ux, Jo= Afy
grfersreer g At guzefiar & fiae vy =hmy & gorwer F0m

(21) Teor fAfer:

() GTETgET A TFHATH & 0 qraeas Tt IUTT FT, TIEHT FRT AT RemEeet & g
ETETETET T THATH I AT A TATE FE ST ATITAT T,

(i)  STIITAT g AATF FHA0r RITRT FRT ST GRATET FHAMT o6 TH [H=07 9377 § T97 A,
T A FH F @ g i
(iii) orer At &r A | TATOT ST@TIET AT ATIATE & H0T el T ToHaT & forw Af9Emar &
o efaq &1 STereTe wam”
XXV. wex @fRgE & A 23 & sy-RERaw (1) & Regar siaenfea G st :

“23. wortfert sfiT fA=i=on &t fsraet, st o qeaitee.- (1) T [t & [, ot
TORITSAT 3T FeAT IUTAT AT FHeAT, TR 3% geaiah o o a1 ghn”

XXVI. e fafqemt % fffaaw 24 #1 Ramgar oot G s :

“ 24, ST At -l - (1) Tom [Afe vE s sifer s s S atarfeem,
e, fafeemt, fReanfAer, o=t s yfereroer g ST [Aaelt & ragmi & SIqarad St AR
& foro e grm
(2) AT ATTRTT Tt ofF TqATAG AT sl RAIE A S Faa= &9 8 T S T 990
TUTTEAT =TH T T

(3) AT SATAFTLT T SATATAT THTOTTH TATL FAT orad Ifeertaa g & For [far 7 aft Ay
AT 37 A=t &7 srqure BT &, UF Sroras iy gerd [Atd % Mers wed g sqAred
STTUTT SiiY [Ha9r He et sl feeq ot |24, At Fis g1, I 0T ol TEqd a1 STu|”

XXVII. geg fAaffgwt % fafew 25 f Fergar siaenfia BT s :

“25. TTEEHTOT AT ST YL TUTAT AT T TAAT.~ (1) IO AT TS T TOTAT =474, Fore
fAfer & Fre o T 7T FHar g |

(2)Ter fAfer 1 I8 Fasx g T ag TITIEor a1 g o+ TUTel =] g Agiid sE&fd &
T TRt =T T w0
XXVII. gex fafaawt & A 26 & su-fafaw (1) & (2) i Rugar sfaeenfea B s :

“26. Adreror ua siheqor.- (1) wrfareer Rafaa siawer a2 S sfa auE, Yom fAfer @ Fbeor
FT

SURIE & dTasgE, a8 FheT o g0 S |7 Stera awer, |@ier a1 F A7 dFwe® [w 7 % A7 o9
sTtersha Tfafafer & areas | Fier sAfvera siv ol = Afvera s geaa [t & aeamast afga =9
At % qga e SzeT gq afeai, @rar, Ao FT R0 AT siheror ¥ FahdT g

(2) Iu-fafaaw (1) ¥ [f< Sgeat # anfoer gr & & -
(F) STAECAATHS AT, TOITTerT AT TIHRATSAT T TaT AT,
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(@) Tg gEtEa w1 & qEERdl, soaels Araddl i IEqrast digd o i@l &7
TETETE 34 At % st fAfee Sf & B s = e

(1) T GETEAT FAT o FT = ATE FHA0T TOAT, TR0 ST AT IAH T & T
Yore TS gTRT IAHT AU FFAT AT TR/

() Tg gEtEd Far & Atafaay, Femt, G, Renfacen, TR siw s gy ST
RSl 3 STl F7 AT AT TR

(%) deora fe FF AfAfAte=t a% T9a ST arer et W ATHCr 9 ATSETarst, Feaelt A1 et o
=r{E & 978 fRTaat T ST AT A

(@) stwETare & {a 9 S 3tea auE, waq: 996 JH Sarg wATl”
XXIX. wer fAfaat & fRAfqaw 27 Ft fRergar sfeenfia R s

“27 . FALreror AT Sihetor ¥ TEA .- (1) TH TLATH F Tgd (ALTEAT AT Sihefor T & Tgof, TTrerheor
T 38 ATFersd Sfafafer 3 sishera S [fer 1 @@ &1 faaw &7 rfes 3

g, TS ATTEor §qE g fo fAretor 3 sisreror sttsrararent & fgai $if donre qear & for g, av et
Trfew T sraeTHhar qgl gl

(2) Frfreror = streror % 2w, Ao B, S frferr a1 sirer B o7 @ 2, o A i
20 U s FTeEt # MEgd w AT A @’

XXX. wex RfFge & A 28 & sy-REHaw (1) & Regar siaenfuq G st :

“28. AT S siheror aX IR~ (1) Yerd ATy =1, fSoraert Adveror a7 SrEmadar i S @ 8, Wi
T a9, ATIFRET ST FHATLN &, ATTAHIOT AT I8 AT TATATEN AT AT TLeTF T, Il
ST A7 fA=r § VAT Fi2AT, |@ral, AtHerar i} o7 TEATASl il Teqd HLAT A IHeh HIAFATT]
H HaTerd UH fEaor s GHT T FAT 0T, UE F877 & Hra< sar & &= FFar ST awar g1 "

XXXI1. e fafqwwt F fAfagw 29 #1 Ramgar oot fEr s :

“29. sieheror Y TihAT.- s siereror, e fhetor, TwadT SheAur i dore fAfa F e eisheqor
S O & s o STasr, a8 srfaeer g =i T smoam?

XXXI1. e st ¥ ffagw 30 # sv-RfFaw (2) & 717, w 717 Su-fafFaw (3) Remgar siet
STTUATT

"(3) TALTETOT AT SeReqor % I ATTEFHT ATh T T&qT AT AT UHA FEqTasT T AT, TTTEHIT
e Terelt |1 ST A7 gt AT T o Farer § S gl

XXXI11. g st & fAffas 33 &t Remgar afdeantta G seer
“33. TSTIRTT THTUTTS T TERCUT T AEa AT~ (1) STt o i 2 3wt v

(F) sireRTer yoToras AT e o & T o FEw e aat &7 9 T § e wgar g, Sl
HTHAT BT

(@) stafeaw, M, e, Rorfacert, 9=t s Ao F =gl 7 Ieda" #dT €

(1) TTEERTT AT qATATT & AT SEwT SFaary GhEr o Yo [Ter A1 sTSte w0 gEarated av
SHH AT FHTHTT & TAT &,

(=) srfarfeae it g 28 F TEa Sfeafua #re ff 4% Far §;
(F) AN FT ATET TTTAFIT T I (o T AT FLA | (AR TZaT &;
(=) rfafafer ST T@AT 6§ F€ <aT g T IR0 g QU 70 9Sishaor SHTS & 999 o & oy

T F STAEA T ¢,
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(@) =& g U Tu Rt T sreaTaes, ardl a1 a9 T AT S A7 [AeATed wd § A gar
2 AT TET A & forg srfasReer gy yaT it T qwy fiwr F Fiaw G of SeerEe 3 e
FT 5T A § e Tgar g;

() A= =TI Tt AT St geren § fora g 4 o =t F At e F forg wfage
T & AT AFSETATen F Bl % IfaFe THTE ST ATer qLAeh F AT HIET FATAT FHdT 2,

(=) STferRor grer i e T of St H HeEnr A AT 2

(1) ITTEERTOT T T FATH AT FAAT T HAT & [STHRT ATTEHIOT AT SATSETaren a1 Fohet Jegesr %
srfereRTaY, Tfeat a7 Rt a¥ ggeagl y9Te T2 g;

(2) ITTERTOT ZIRT STUTerg saters ed T&qd da! Fdl &,

(3) AT Gor AiATafer & Haferd STresRr g sruterd fis W a1 Teqd Fed § A% Tgar &;

(3) wATHE, TaET AT W@ FHIHAT H§ TR HAT ST g ST ITEor f T # ATTaTars & =ar
T s T ST €,

(T) FTSITE AT TEIH AT & AT A= 3 ATATE e giord FdT 6,

(1) srfEfaae it g 20(2)(F)(F) F Ted e FAaH AT AT TISHT 6 qgd SAT9arar & af
T MY 7 TEAT e | ey Tgar & 4

(@) sAfdaTaret F B & a7 Sow Aroer F satead G § arfdweer gy S G oft @der #
A F2A § [Ahe 2T &l

(2) TfarFzor smaer T, T o7 FRATe 9¥ Gfdge T9Td STl a1, GSieaor T/ &i [Hefad
A7 f97Fq T AT g, AT e saer AT Faer arfia F% Thar g, STaT TTTereReor g 3t=rd w7=AT 9|

(3) ISTeRoT o TAea AT TEHTOT T S QT TT T Al QAT SATUIT & aF (o Ga(ad A<k Hl
fafa=eT 3 ST E Y T2 T F Tgd qAATS A I A9 Al [9FT TAT Z

XXXIV. gex fafagt & fAffaw 33 ¥ a1, Rufafaa fftas afte g s, auaig:

“33%, TSTIhTOT AT T Y.~ (1) STTIEHTOT F ey w2 g fAfer sroar dsfsreor o=y
FATeT T gl

(2)TH STag 9 A= F & for, srtereer g [Mter 7 Mt i 99 w5 a9t 8-

(F) TTEIFT % HETAT, ATAT AT X @@= 92 ATHrarat & itser, [ a7 afagfaat %
LT forT T TS et 3T ATHETATAT 7 FAT T [HLA<ar AT FHer,

(@) T AT AT FEATAL, AT FHlS 2, Hl AT,

@) srfdraTarst £ forsrrrat w1 R, siv

(=)  srfaTaret & B § #rE av 3urT

(3) ISTTEHE0T STHTOTIS A T2l & e U2 A= i TH, ITTEFI0r Gor [Afer 9% UHT ordf S |qeha’

g ST g AfaTaret & fgat it grear & forw 3fra aw=r

(4)Tore AT 3 GSiraReor AT Afer & et f7 sRrer 9% o= /gt o stroar S ey #

STTEREOT BT his ST, AT o fF=mrei= 2

(5) ISTTEHTOT THTOTS ATeT 6T ATHTT qd TH Al af SATUIAT ST T 1o T §q T gl 910

Yorg ffer 7 su-fAff=w (2) ¥ T8 smaegwarst iw su-AfH=w (3) F aga o7 odf, 7= FE 2, F

AT AT & AT 376 AqATA  ForT Fad 3277 2

(6)STET TTTErEHTOT 7 USTIhT0T TS FHAT FA F AL FHl TR F o ar g, g Jo [Afdr =
T T ISTHT0T ST 957 ST SISt &0 ST 60 0 AgRe 91 &1 F3eq &7 &0 7 3 a1d w1
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feaet & iae gi=a w2 U G347 A Ja9Tee 9T AUATE T F GrI-a1 o0 Gaiad s o o

ST AFETEE T ATATE Flel TAT AALTFHATTATE TATA S THTT Fe o a9 "

XXXV. #ex fafaawt ¥ At 34 st Rugar yfaenfa B s
“34, TATOMIT & AT AT WIHTIT HT THE.- (1) TS0 JqTora= = e it 7fr &, S ffer,
sret At 2

()
(@)

()

(1)

(=)

TET Herd TUTEAT AT 17 Yord ThIHT o T TAT G FAT 98 F <7, AGT ATHAT 8T,
Arfea, ATHEl, TEATES 7 a7 F qag | UHT Fwears o gerd @8 & fAg=or ar
AR | g1, J97 fHT % fia¥ =i 39 ads o S IRk FFAt % agd maeds gr a7 sS4 T
grfereReer gRT et & S

FOT T T AW 9T A, AT, FTEATAST AT AT, ST S8 FAAT AT AR H g, S w
grfersreer g [Refoa BT STu, o1 = § sfiY 59 0% T G s dae [t 7 g s,
dore TATer AT IS, a7 Taed & dgd THT ATEqAT & TATE AT Hl IAT2d Fid |, STl
AN BT, AIAT AW ¥ =77 9, qAT AF9TF TEraar Y&\ HT T T T G Jorredt
AT AT TAFLOT GILT SAUTerd BT, UHT HTES(( S0 AT FhERT0T R S ATRTAT F UH
AT F Hae § ATHIET  fZq | gN AT g1 derd [fer 7y o gAtaa wom & a+d s
TEATAST, ATH IT FAAT T AL ITTAHIIT FIRT SR 0T AT AT ST

UHT SRt T Saeor ITTEEwTor g ST feermtaaent a1 [aer & srgame T s, &
TSI AT der AT srfersreer & fHaer & otefiq R 5 & & U 47 siaeor a1 #1 [ Ae!
BT ST AT ST e Gt 1207 STHT09S Heterd gar gl

TSt eRoT AT fave g it fafar &, gefera dore Afer-

S Tfafatest & gy & s @ Aqafd & T 8, e 7777 TEAT a8 HAT AT 09 39
HTHAT T THTIA T,

T T [FeEd 0 U SR THTOTTS T ITIEEROT T GISTUNTT ST UHT o+ USigl v
g T, Rieg I a2 & dae § e grar i B S aear € & =T &7 9=t
JTATEE T AT UH TATHGIAT 3T TLIh & AT HTT,

TTTEEREOT GIRT &1 T2 |q97 ST % fiae T ff stvr [Haer &7 21 F3A7 3T 39 SAqaTad =l
RITe &7, 3w

THh LT ST AT U1 T TS AT oF Fael H YL FLATI”

XXXVI.5q@ fafagst it srqget | (dsiaw<or sqmore) §, Tdi, e i< s,
i. "R 3(1)" & "R 9(2)(w)" & wiaenfug R ST, s
i. "fafa 9(2) T@" # "t 9(2)(w) T@" & wiaeTiaa T ST

XXXVIL.

e AfRget & aag=T 1 (ST a7 S gg wMes) H Femgar sfaefaa B e -
“TTAT 11
te At g ik e fgewr
(Ferr f2fer) RfRam, 2015
[fafa=e 8(1)(=) 3% 8(2)(2) %]
SUgH T e’ & g ArdE

Tg etRa # & forg & a7 srees a1 arrsre ar god e a7 3T yqE AfIwET uE S a°T
Sta =i g, Tfeeeer Rt ot #e it o9 § @ g%ar g, e ag sta e, e Aot
AT T g, AR Tval a HITHd 8l @ :

(WTT-)

() fa<hr TefasT;
(@) IR AT AR SASTAT H7 7 g,
(3T) AT,



16 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I1I—SEC.4]

CIESERIGEIE R IRE
(3.) TEAAT ST AR, T
(=) TA=tT=remes a|ar T dead (9F qrforda)

(FTT-8)
Tt =rfer 1 'Sues Tt Sfra e 98 7T sroe 7y suE Aefored § & e off s g

(1) wfersreor gy vH =afe F fAwg, sroafaes whwar |@t2ar, 1973 (1974 &1 2) #Y 4 154 % 9gq
STIRTTEr fOrRTara AT FEAT I AT TS § 37 ST e B

(2) TH =xfr o e anfdw sraoy & gefaa g § Gt yada usieht g s o 2w
TAT BT 377 AT 2,

(3) ST STt AT =i TSIl AT AHT FA T Faterq et o qreer § grteswer 71 T G
AT 71 yedw uSiEt g v safn o Aeg T, e g7 widerer w sweer urhia T
& oiiw TS smater &t gwrta it [t & 9 a1 6t srafer aF e J9TT T81 gon &;

(4) %ﬁaﬁmaﬁ%aﬁwﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁwaﬁ%%ﬁaﬁmﬂmﬁmwﬁﬂﬁwﬁwmﬁmw

(5) T =Af<h e fawg TTTEeor g7 age! Fraarel % #f T ¢ L A1ad &

(6) ok sTer|aT AT M sTu=Te AT eETET 7 2 TR staerer F forw srater g UH st e
o | 7 sraer gl T T g,

(7) UE =Af<h e [Aeg wiE 9199 FAATE! S5 6l T g AT THTIT T A1 a1 6T 7 8,

(8) T =k e faeg s fRarer #daET ©ifaq & a1 stgr s fearforar =nfva . &= w1 § &
I Al 36T AT

(9) U =Af<h fSrEeT T SATIEERR aTel SATATAT GIT Aahd AR 7 91T 747 ¢ 3 Fehy a0 &,

(10) T =xf<h fSEaT AT THFAT 6 &9 | a((hd 6T T3T &;

(11) T =i ST aenreT et sty =nfva B =

(12) et T IETT AT FYTHE TITAFRTT FRT SATh & [A6g el wrears a1 s a1 et o sHfa it
T FAATGT T AR AT AITEH ST ITAAT o6 I I ek, TG & T AT FATT <7 AT FTrera
FAIT T THh fOeg wda Rd 8%, arada fimr @fRams i G sriesor a1 s
gt &Y A= o atea Gt € st o & BfRames 1, yaga sEaret af gadt g o S
UHT S T g1 ST TS 6 ®9 § HATU TG FHIA 0l 7T 9 T hed T ST Gl &; T

(13) TS =T ATFFAT S TTiereReer gy Afaw & sroy”

XXXV, ger fRfagat f sqaet 1 (R F aga 3 goF) &1 9 & [Regar shaeatag G

STUAIT:
“FgAT 11
Yo Afer R ik R migewr (Faw [fe) R*fFew, 2015
[ 4(2), 9(2)(®) 3T 13 34

Rt 3 sterter 37 o
"I &
I % €T F YIATT T T qTAT IR

FHI® | qeH  FT | A THIT S TOET AT T THT
THT

1. e 10,00,000 T3 I 9T AT F | AATTT Hore S & wraers & =
o[ ST oY % =Ty SS— # #wd F & o s

TEQA Fd T

2. EEIETu 25,00,000 9T IH 9¥ AN FI | ATAST USTERTOT THTOTTS T&TH HLd

A ST et o |1 ——— T




[T Hl—&vs 4]

HILT T TSI . AHTYTL

17

3.

T g J9-99T 9%
gt o o % sqamw,
=J1a9 10,00,000 = gyfg av
(2,50,000 =¥ wfa fawmEr =T
IOF FY AT F AR F AT
AT F AT

ElEER D

ERILEE]

JaHA % Tgd AEaar H
EIRE

freeht fowmer & sifow
ffag 9w wegq ¥ deq
STt i 7 o=
T ST

s AT % sty wgi
*F 10 F o T a7 dshiseor
THTOTS & F39 & &9
et ¥ sfrar, Fwies
YT 9T 377

XXXIX. qeT fafaawt fit dqg=t [V (FTUOE AT Fi & g s/ors) #, "SR S 3 & g
THTOTIA" 9Ts3 T "SI STTEA FHLA T TATOIA" F gy Tfaerfoa f=har sram)

g At F aqgEt V(RO i wwvew) #, "RfAEw 12 (9) $iiw 22 (8) 3@ I 191, 51t 3T
et 1 "fafRaw 9%(1) (1) 3fT 22 (8) 3@" F T wiaeenfaa 3 sroem)

qeg RfATet i st VI (=R Eigan) #, "R 12 (2) 3k 21 @ J1di#, a5l 3 il
= "RFTT 9% (1) (3) [@" F gy waeuToq B soam

XL.

XLL

XLII.

AT < () Sq:eariaa fFar Sram, sraiq -

ger ARt it sl VI (=R "iRaT) F 90T I (@31 &1 TRw) § @2 (9) F 9, T

“(F.) T Yot TS T U=t A e &7 Tehed TP T TOITAT <1 g1 giee 3T T grasits

TTHA H ITASH TTET 3T T | FIAT SRIT| ST THEKEAT o6 dT AT o TELT I AT % 3227 |,
Yo e Faer 59 fafoat & forw Ree &1 SwanT & e forw fes g Sem sorret =ame g
weRTtera for o g o |eft Jow [feen % fed &1 Teed w40 Ff dord [AfY Faer sraet =hiw F
= T Yohew FEAT FATRaT g, a1 UET fRufa § =R\ & forg s=wre e &1 off Tehe T Sirosm &
THR THHREAT o AT Flg LT T&TH Aol hl SATOTI”

XLIIL g7 fafaaat it st VI (i e @i sisreror Raie) i famgam sfoenfaa G
ST

ERGEIRY )
Yo [AfY R s R wfeerer

(T fafer ) AR, 2015
(Frferr 20 3%)
fafir faraor siix sicheror R
ars R

(D). s R

FTTeF e | enrfae gi-
i Tt a9 % 0 TodE ShiA & TREredl a7 R $iw st
ii.  fAeferied weft av "fer fHaor, e -

F. Yo [fer &t T=ar ofw SaeaTae;

g, TAF T 7 A 3R,

T, g § A sy e i

. ThiA feer T gt

T. FfE d9AT i AT 51T T & Jaeid 9% ferafor)




18

THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I1I—SEC.4]

Vi.
Vili.
viii.

iX.

X.

FTEAT % T =g VII F TTHTE TATIT 31 TS @I HT Herd HEheor
ThI o Tae | Aqeeg VI & ATHTE a9l T IaaTad faaw

der fAfer grT watea it SRt & FatEha = Eawor

TH ATIAT F AToE X F AHTE T At

TH AT & =R 1 3T 11 % T8 a9 ¥ TS @,

TH ATHAT & AR [V & STIETE hera il Ore;

TH ATHAT & Ao V & ITET Shidl 6 "I Ahs " & arel eaeor
TH ATEAT % AR VI F AqE d@T-feeaform)

(1D). quraﬁﬁm

Vi.

Vil.

AT § IHhT AEqAT 3T AT FT ShiwaTe AT AT ST =899« J it
fRerert = qeaia =T v weea Qo &=t & ot Tehee T strom)

AT, TAF T 6 (99T & qad, Faer I= § f= Raat F 96 987 g7 3T a™r
T FT T FAT

AT, @T Y o T § T (s & 05 SN qod (TATAT) FT Tehed HT|

AT | AT HE % AT foreger fa<iia a9 & ofq #§ aaqedr siiswe f3u S

AT 61 feoafort # fRerer  gag # fMeferiea g=ar 1 T fBam sroar : -
F. oA # R T g anftEeor F qga adt et w agges G s,

g, YT T A0 & Siaid, Td% THE SN qYg & qgd A are [Aaen &7
T qod (ST q&T aviaor § Fof [Haer 7 5 Taerd ¥ &7 Tl g) awa &
HTae gt e & qoeT § 376 Tiaerd & & yahe o Siroa;

7. A w1 e e 3w wuiHE F am R w gt Ses Faer B T g s
Yot AT % AEAhl oY IO FAAT H 6T 70 qohet Haer, Tf FI g, i qqmEm
STTUAT,

7. e frdT UHET "euT i "4aret & orw e, Atewer gow A1 BRET o o w
AT TR AT g A7 2 g, e g [T a7 39 e Qv dat ® and
2 8 (I IS0t &1 109Tderd & w7 7 ), ar Toed G1d | Sfae & T8 097 AT
UHT TGl F Heer # Aaer F T F ' H AT S aver afer g [ F
TS AT H&T AALHTEF & Fa2or F &1 3ot & gae fm STroam)

T,  Tg AT e aqETe g At &7 spe i1 a7 T4 § ST SHehT TUET,
9 % gree Afdat f st aardt i gew e it gie o @6 w1 awa
T T ST 3 5 Aed God & AT & FT § 2A<h [6AT STUIT,

. THS S f=e i g9t S,

S, o F qr § [ ¥ ST qeag e AT geag i omfHe grf.

T o T H AT AL R TTELTAT Bl TATTS 6 FAT TeT & YT 6 qgd AT
Tl oA ST, S =0 Safead arfed & 9 4od | & Ferdl & &9 § [G@maT ST

ATTAF & F A /0 TT R 9T A-T AATS6d AT (@1 AT THT A AT
Zraran o faeor s 3 % A s widergarst &1 @t wehe B sroem




[ATT [H—&TE 4] FTLA T (ST SETHTI 19

T & e fidw
T T AT 987
eI T arteqat & eferted Aot | avfiga e s
o 9T
o ST
o 37T FAHTH iRt
N 2 e 2 s s
1. e

Aeforfaa gse & At &7 ForT & Tohed ohar SToa (Faer 39 oftieht & e dga Merer waq &
AT 2):
T A e

ii. e 9

iii. R R i,

iv. T G MTEa/I0 €9 § Hiad U] ATgd hea ¥ S TsF 1L i TTasiaam;
v.  aTiorSTs O,

vi. o fae

vii.  THTEUE (FEer Avi | ST Goft |l)/smeEarsdi/ansuadtersdt/antea antda wiastai/au
EIENESRIEG LRI

viii.  Fg |l feIw | |t

iX. - AT HE, TH AR

i ST S ST
i. oV
3. I AT et
(i) 1 % 979 AT/F=d @I | T LT,
(i) e
(i) fafae e,
(iv) THerer it fasht & fore srqa;
(V) SERTAT AT AT M;
(vi) R, s enfe;

(vii) r/Re=w/s= e Wi e e @faq gl (Tasfa & 919 % 97y 969Iaw
TR IHOT AT ST 2);

(viii) ST I

(iX) = F T § afied a9t 9% 9oy 7=+

T : Feh o T § aTd AT 6 Fa9r & o7 g
(x) ==




20 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I1I—SEC.4]

oY= =T ST 987
AT F AT T8 I Aeterted aqgi # FEraria T s
o THL TSN,
o IR ST ATAAW;
o FAHI IIATU 3T AT
e o e 2 e s
I =& G
i ST O,
i, TRTS OSIT (SRTEAT T HEAT o7 s ge wi T atea))
Il seferd sfi srferery
i, zars it srefer (o)
ii. \TETE srtera (Rerd);

iii. FE s st (Rerd) (et wahf % werdisneon) e s qeag i @mar anfas €,
SR 79T, sfera (RSrE) &/aT siawor, ST § & g2 T & sitera () & forg
e orer Trfer 7 31T | YehaA AT ST

.  FEHETT STATT 3T ITILTT

Ao adaT SFarst i yraem=t F S shw
FAYTT FAqTU
(i) P a=er;
(ii) e &t wdis % forg srqa;
AT (YT &1 SR F9):
(i) =THEET
(i) ¥ &dum
V. HATHEAF T
() widsgar
(i) w77 (Fraor gam= #Y)
(). T~reT @ F fAwaae
(i) TTSTed GTd | T i & o e, =2 36 srfarary 1 = e fRar srom)

(i)  =fs Torea @ra § femm ru Faert $i fht 9w a9 §, g6 Go [Mer & sfiaw Meer & sae-ehm
AL 9T ATA/GTA T oTiHer T 1T §, a7 YT 0 70 U 79 F Fed TRT R g 987 &
rarer it fosht 92 19 / 271 % |y enfier fohw foAT sterr & wehe o S

(i) T @A ATILrT/ATE F RIS FT F AT U Aierd RS § S{qr F HAeqw 7 q9qvAr
STTURTT
(iv) o @ ® st ot gate s
F. T, THAT AT AT AT K T F Tha [HeAert s a7 Tt God o qraem,
g, ATHTerT, TATTUE =T, 7ATHT 9% 37T Feal T AT@IT ST HHT o




[ATT [H—&TE 4] FTLA T (ST SETHTI 21

T. STl dad 9¥ R 3w R o, T ok ol FdTer

T, T AT M =TT B <fwq g fEd & wiaerd & =7 § =2 6 13w g, Seehr e
& e o fy 2 B

TSTET @TaT F qeF ofivs

T

AT,

EIEE

- Frarer F fashi/m=e 9% AT (stae-whi star/faehy 3 sterra);
- aer & Sfav-whre staon/feeht a2 AT,

- Faer # At 9w srmer Ay

- T A (TFIQ T 39407 gN)

= I v

- ferer % gowr § s griaat

- 9% % =7 H g Haer F o yrae;

- Trarer i fashi/mr=e 9 g1+ (Srae-whie Saqeor/fershy  sterra);
- f3rer 3 siae-hm siaeo/fasft e gt

- Ferer wee g,

- TAHTUH =79 @4t 6 g,

- R i Ao 9o,

- TiEdt e U< TATA

-EETFT 9o

- AT o F;
- Tl ATHAGIT STTTHI [
T FA T ATrEIT T 9feah  fory garreat it faefy & g wrfer
-
feroquft

faer (AATsTver sfT sATST AEd) & UTH TSI 3T AT T 7IAT 6 [oIT T@isha A T Tohad U feoquft
ATeaw | foRaT ST

(IV). &R sanera it Rare
i. 3T g oo T [ 4T,

F. Sreid T GAAT S TTEH0 IT6 60 g, ST 376 9 307 orams F o4,
IR SREAT o 39T & (oI ST9TF 2;

G, [T AT TTEF GTAT, ThiH 6 Tgi-GTal & TGeT &,
. AT AT THH F AGT-agl @rdl 1 3= T@-ara @ g;




22 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I1I—SEC.4]

o, HEETcHF T | HgAd / ITTF0T G107 SAqHIad HIATA | ATF THT AT-a =741
T Hor fAfer gT Fge FoFa 7T 8 3% ST I9TX $0E ATfed §oF 9 Al v rrar
AT &;

T. 39 NUe # enfAe & &7 qa@ua &l T grar =9 et i s
ATITH F FA(q AT @7 AEHRI 6 AR 39 HAT TH 8§, T aF
e g 2 2

ii. 3TheTeh 3O T H FUAT 10T &4 o

F. fa<i= a9 & ofq § qoraua uadrue/ofiars fi @hm-are i w1 987 o Forer
LIRS

T, o=t v % forw vores grar vadtua/adiETs F whare srferer/sme w1 987 3w
fAeaer g ar 2l

iii.  3ToheTsh Tg FATAT FT o

. THarer T Geaiehe STTeror g ST fReri=aen & Tam T T &;

T, fafers et g T 10 -3 ST 2Ta/9e® ITTEeor gy ST [RefHaer &
ALHT &

iv.  sierersh foRelY farero fasfier ot & forg =hiy sisperor foqe/=hi @mat = @y "wadfiue =
- Faeqa sereror RO (TAHUE-SUa & &7 § §3fq) 99F UF o dre ff seqa
TN I seheAur e A uw g de [Afg a1 & & s R #r e
ITFARTOT/UadIUE =T T iR e 9 sremfia g deord [Afdr & e dea

BT 3¢ Taeqa siereqor ROTE 9T B9 o &7 Heid & WY Sqares RATe S&qa FeAT giRir
| TAUH-ST0 T4 UAue Shidi & o0 us 936 RO grit sihers Aetered

IT&ET H Teh THTOTT <
4T H,
RIGICIES
T Yo TOTTeAT =T
LERECC
HA, TEIT YT TOITEAT 7378 SR TG 00 T ST GAT 3 AT e, (Forr TRt i Trghr g
sorTeAT it FAerferfaa =t dr srate/ay & fore faega stweqvr o § s uadfroa-Siua sraes
HTATHATS T 2|
i Fi/erafy
THI T AT 139 ... 31 AT A ...
THIH T ATH 1 A ... 31 HIH qF ...
THIT FT 919 199 ... 31 AT T ...
THIT FT 979 199 ... 31 AT T ...
THTH T AT 1 A9 H... 31 HIH TOF ...
THIT T 979 199 ... 31 AT T ...

o T AT 1A ... 31 HH TF ...



[9TT HHl—aTE 4] T T TSI © T 23

A e R w8

1.

A, TAT A9 &Y faeaT™ & |y, IO =T ST st a1 0 &, S, g/ sisheror & forg
AFLTF A

AT T ®, Tou® | fi rar-af2at #1 st=a e G = 2

AT FATs § AT TANUH-SIUS S=gAl § Geag TEr &0 Hl orae &6ar w@r gl
(Feefvra faferaa gearafia s T 2)

TEE AATAT, F@T TATE FIA 6 [0 AN d@iehd Hgial, e oiw GearHeen  sqamw asdf
==t &1 e dorwr e § o T 2

Yore TS 3T a9TU MU SfHera it T ST o ST T, g6 M SeATd wd § 14

1.
2.

™

Tor FRTEr ST SIEeor it ST TRl TS, TeaT0 ST qeAT I TAH &

Yot TAfer gy T ST YOIt w97 gEATeA i Herer Yaue "weArd, Yo Aty AfHew
¥ ISTRe0T o =T 3T ordT T SIquTad AT ST 22T 2l

TR0 EIT A9F-997 9 ST {0 70 f[{gert a7 ster |ifafas sresii 1 e har 1w
2l

Yot fAfer & fRameretTd 38 YT "=Tterg R0 ST 72 € ST srfsrararsti & 2 § 2

TTTErERT0T T HiaaTeHs &9 § Hgad/Aqaiiad dATe § Af9F gu g4l a-aq =29, o f[fer
FT a2 [0 U & T 372 TAUAT 9% TATHT Fal 4T 47 2|

Tor fAfer wram
TqUTH Y /sty & for qe siwe

IEERUI

1. TAUET I THTS (F0):

ifegfa gafRafe aonfRaft  aonfeafs
- figerad sdamad  Rgerad

ATH

EE|




24 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I1I—SEC.4]

=

TaTH

2. JaE % Tl FHIAT Afeaam (A" =97 )

T

oY & T e d aArfeq (TuuH)

3. TUAUH & IIA9d o T H Tohed 3T

4. =1 AT

F. TUIUH 6 TAed & &9 H FT AT (ThiH-aY)

g, TUUH F IIAad & &7 § Tae7 ok (Thaam)

5. TUUH F IIAerd & &9 | 65 AT

6. TIEhITeTel FHel AT SATATT

7. e (wfaer)

. fger 19

EERIED

g, TIIAT & 997 | (ThIH Aed 6l JRE T8
%)

EERIET

T =gl AT g T (TTTerd)

e 391

o= 5 91

oot 10 71t

1. T 3T = ToT6F G H§ (F) § 97T TS (97 JTHT 3107,

2. 95 AT = TS @Td | (1) | ST TE 09 i F/A 08 o forw 95 e A/

3. FEwIerdl H F FER = a9 / (Y & &0 $req vguw & @ @@t a1 @i 1 59 g
(ATt AT T FEET)

4. TUIUH = 9 a4 L& Arfed

5. 'Iwdfg ATTUF Flag a2 ohT 0T AT G F A4 9% ot AT+ g Tidera = (1 + g=47 Red) iin -
1 (ST n = 365/fGAT it F&AT 37 i 37afd B)

6. TAUAT = (ThIH g 9T a9 FT S5 g7 + Jaa Aeadl &1 o - FaaTd aFaT e T
T g, TS AT g / {Feaiswa faf2r a¥ gareat it &3 (SHRAT & ol / /= & 9ge)}

7. SFHTE = ThI % Y9 JodTehd & o0 TAYTUH =76 g F9077 T0 ShiH 90T e

(VD)  fHRe & aiaes &t f[{awr
dore At & e, g TR=ee Sfesmi/a= e T T8 THI H0 (6 -

1. i far e, frowsmeio (Gaw [t Bffm, 2015 sie artesrr gr S fRenfAeent
& AT AT Fohw 7T &)




[9TT HHl—aTE 4] T T TSI © T 25

2.

T ThIT GTql & AT H, AR T@ihT G9! T S Haq g7 dR] ST T Tqarad At
TAT B, AT & Feqd fo=a & Fatera 3t=a easaor €f fiw o g;
ST AT T FTATE FAF/TTRT AT SATAT LT § AT 39 g7 v i o 1o g v asvea

S ferasot € atfeh 31 AT, 20XX &1 a6 fo=iT a¥ & forw dom f[Afer g wetaq e i
feurfar sfiw 3 srafar & forw =het = stfarsra/aTe % ar | |8t o fAeaer g faar S a9,

TEIH T srferaTaret v smfEaat £ qrar o erarat Tt sew stfaafAaaret i T sie A
T # F o frowsm=io srfafRaw, 2013 % yraem=t i siaf+Ra AR/t
FET GTAT ATHAGT T 97T TG o forT It i a37d qragm awdy 1% 2;

T TAT TATAAT & o0 A i Mo [eaia e 70 g ofiT I stqaeer T S wgr
g ST U Araiien RE=07 93Ty ¢ oY TATET &7 | &i7d 2 7 8, A7

T AR FTAT % TTFETAT AT ATATAT AT F o6 o 3t yomforat Jame i 1€ i vy
ST T 93TH 8 3 THTET & F FTH F7 Bl 5l

(vii) Gferg gawae SfiX Toea |1aT IS
CIEEECERE]

Tor fAfer wram

T FHTE A9 /(Y % fory 4e7 s

T Ay fgerad adamad fReer o)

THE T

Freferd s st

2.1

TaTs St aefera (Rere)

2.2

TraTe srefera (Rerd)

23

AT AT oA

24

FAATT IFATU 3T T

3.1

e o & | F(gd Faer F oI yraemT

3.2

T FAHTH SFATU AT TTTH

ki




26

THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY

[PART I1I—SEC.4]

srfeaat
1 e
1.1 =
1.2  Re=v/aEte
1.3 dafeT fRaer
1.4 g gtasfaat
1.5 | HaT AT
16 @7
1.7 9% fAaer
2 I FAATT SATeaqat
2.1 g ST gF G| (9 )
22 ¥

Kl

dfer Trorea @rar
Yot fAfer 1 AT
................. FT 78T a9 /et F o e aiwy
=T ofr ot
garRgfa gutRafe guaRufs genfeafa
| Ramad o Red

1 AT
1.1 ATHTU
1.2 =S|
1.3 SAL-ThTH ST 9% TTH AT
1.4 Harer & fehl/= = 9% 9T A
1.5 AT AT

S9-% (F)
2 =T
2.1 SHAC-FHIH AT I T grie
2.2 arer it feshl/A=e 9 | g




[ATT [H—&TE 4] FTLA T (ST SETHTI 27

23 e gy O
2.4 T g
2.5 TATUE =] =T Taqid
2.6 T a2
SI-FT (F)
3 TH AT o [oIT [E 9T ATs/(3T)
(FT=TT)
fRaer % qou § e geagta/aeag™ |
4 3 ThEaT
5 TH AT o [orT 5 ATTAw/(HTeT)
FAuforfeaa et v oo
AR feoquft

1. GTaT q¥ feoafort § Yl ST Haterd Uiy il 97 ATt Hgeaqul #al &7 &awor ard H7 |

2. T TeAGTa/qead a5 T TUHET TT STeq a9 g7l SITUIT 37T qY LT T IATS A0 3897
Fi/zrafer % foro s geagrm/eagis § afiads @1 eaw § v S J1iRv s e a9 F e| '
T [0 M0 sraredias Teagra/qeadie i T9: 90T ST AR )

(VI) @rat 9= feoqfort -aa= sfik Oerea @1d & Aqaah

T T AT

QTar a¥ feoafor - |97 a9 /erater o TorT |ferd Q@ 3T TSTed @1 & AT
. [EERU]

q.

1 | fAder-

1.1, = aTq it I F2a gu feoqoft w3 f& =i 1 [Haer gt T9re JorTet = & 916 92 2

1.2. FCTHT 0T AT At (AT % (q § g Al & o7 Fhraw s 47 &7 Jiaerd )

1.3. TEIHI ST TE FAWAT § Feer (Sriwat, Feer it gt ey, T+t yataq et % aga
e fqaer #7 fFaer yae w2)

1.4, T g7 IUTT AT 5 &f12/AT 34T A7 T2 qragfadi it swfers fafq

1.5. 9aer U= & 1= f2/AT 9% % € § afied U 0 [Aerer #7 EaEwor ([war w1 EaEe,
aer &y, @<e @, Faer #1 o7 (393 & 912), AT TTaeTe @l 197, STiora sams
U AN gATHE shl TATLT, UL Taer & for s iy (4TS T qAee) T&T A

1.6. Ta=ir ad/srater  ofd@ & T ST AT/ TAT L& AEqaAT H1 Tfaera|

1.7. @7 T ot #7 aoer gex (et it searft 9Tt #1 SEs7) Y69+ & dgd eq
ATTEAAT o TTAerd o 91X




28

THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I1I—SEC.4]

TEIhi AT THE FAAT 6 A1 AT HT a2 (Fgg<h 1 ATH, AT 6l i S 1T FT
faraor e )

THTE At/ a9 % I e ISl TATAd| RSN § AT H7 ShiHar [ - i,
TEEAT, AA, THTIA| THSTT HT TRIHATE AR ToF 9070

4

g ad & qaAT - UF U faawr & S off aaume aut i T qia F a9 aedE gr ar,
BEEELEE E IR GHELIERAE RIS IY

5

AT A : THfa i T T =T yam #3

Anteel feogft

ST THT THEHN o fory foeger ad/esrafy & qaged e & &

(IX)

SCIETIREI

ot foaeor G F3 oiiT o ofed goa Y AT w7 & forw g fAfer gren = hmt | gefea o
LUERIEIEGEICERER IS LU

1.

Yo AT 7 oae ThHa TRl-a1di i AT e 9% a9T ATl [eer, srfaemwor grr
ST geaiad fRermaaent & SIqaTe, Taq 97 #f fafsr a1 orfeq god a7 903 oifed god (TAud) it
TUET Y AT 9% FqET ST A1

fRarer 1 srfSrerss F srferat & Ay g B ST SRy Siie gareat & &f9e areme 7 A
ATHAGITA ATHFHIT o6 TG H AT AT STET AR

et [t a% stfota avft S =37 T o, [oieg offeq gea/uauar it ToET & fore am=r
STTAT 2, [ T8 (e STH q& AT AT 977 TR AaieT 07 S8 ATHLEF 4ok, Uad oy
T =T Ifaqid s &l IEF e 9 AT HAT AT A0 TS il [0ET & o
i safer fasf o g

et Sf1W gTer SAfSTq ATHTSr AT T, AT AN g it At o 9, afew 39 [t &1 o=
T T TA-ATHILT AT 9T IS T T &, ATar & ST |

aft sToT-aga Faen & gay #, 9 afFE g u% 3uTherd it S ARl SH, ST UE
fRerer w7 frw sia 8, T s s < fafsr & & # &t fafer o &t sate % forg sprae &
T AT &l FF FLA -l AN 6 &9 H Agl AT AT AR, Fiow AT aget TRT g1 § Ifae
(A1) TRt ST AT U THT w0t & J9a wT TS w7 et sarer o oty & fohy o fafr
T T ety o oI 97t T fohT goF | Afaih & &9 § 7l 47 (A7 A1 0, qiodh AT age
T GTd | AT T ST =R

TRerer ¥ gTiar AnTg i arer i okt 9% A1 AT g &1 [ w3 gq, "W Sied ana”
EIEEIRIECRER I IGIRC I

e Ft wdg a7 foeft F o aee @ = (39) [f F =1 qrgar < sy, 9 &F fees
fafar & =7 9, 91fF v B av & e deee fhu o aefy fAerernt &1 aare &1 BT S A i
39 99 ¥ fa<ig e § afiwfea 2y 7en stet e geeft smee 997 e ¥ 91ge 2 8,
a1 & forw, st s 2 w7 27 ST |1 & wrea® |, 90l & A7eaw F AR, ar 39
I &1 @i it Rafa & a1 gy ST =nfEw, e [t i w6 #7 f9aq #1 wae #5755
T e yaawa arica g 3T gr AT, ek i fRafa |, 5o =6 56 ¥ 9T oy uEe A *
T U yEdHT AT T R g AT 9 AU ITHRLON Al AR wA F o s yEdaH i
T T FeT g

e Y, e o S ga 81 SITaT &, &l had aT JTedTr & SITust se 9o e &, 59
T A IIACT AT il AT 8, Tl Taaas] § [@-a9d LT I8 d=ad AT Sar gl or




[9TT HHl—aTE 4] T T TSI © T 29

TR, ATAHTT ZHATLT Al had THT AT & FTOAT ST G a2 &7, B 92 st gaarr
ATSTT BIAT 8, e Uaa=o H TA-SATHTT AT I¥ A (AT ST 2l

9. fRerer 7 ARG § Faer TFT o AT IH T ATHT Sighel TATeA! ATHer gl st a2 o2 o 10
T foradt & forw, do [Afer &1 <7 St areft Rt ot the-Ue e &1 o & ana o arge @
STTORTT

10. T AT FT ST AT T € T ATEqa § SEIAT 00 S ¢, STERor 1T o i o vt #
gaTiRa o ST i srfremar grer aga o Smo 3w mrg uw wre oft geafern, = fe w e g, #r
T F =T H = / [t H SreT stom

1. T3 oo ooF | oIqAa Sl a9-39 U2 TATAT ST 39 9T AW AT F 6T ATALEqF TAC A
BIEHT T AF-a Gaell T AT g1 [Haer Taa g it 1o gerd [fer g w&taq <=
TOTT 9% 3T STTAT g TTTERT0T il 3 (o ThiH & Jgl [oldT SITua

12. a9 I F A= & a9 X I & &7 | F(06a [Fa9r & dae §, AT, a7 A JTaem
TTTEERTOT BT ST fRerfaaent & sTqaras & g’

XLIV.7& fafaasi St s = VI (ST 8 Fia st wa) ¥, "fafEaw 10 (1) (1) &=,

s T 3" &1 "RfFEE 10 (1) ()" % 9y vt R s

XLV.Hqer fagst & sgaet X (Rasr sk sifes sege qf@fd) & 9wt 11 % 9, Rt saenfia

o ST, St

“STT 11T
FOeT sTferfeae, 2013 % TEeT % ATATT SheTT AT
qWT IV
FOAT ATATTH, 2013 F TTALTHT o6 SATHTL ATHIRA S AT THF At

XLVIL qer faffgst 6t st XI (A& seem w08 1E) & 99, T 72 aqqdt X (&0 95
e g (TATdT) it 7T % forg =) Regar swa:erfia BT s :

"FIGAT XTI
Yo fAfer RAffamae siw R wridescr (Yeaw AfY) fafRaw, 2015
[t 18(2) 3&]
ThIA Q& AT g (TATAY) Y 7T F forg FRryor
TTET O
gt ZoTS UAUAT = 95 "y
AT THTAT
1. & AT : Thi § fFg 7w [{ger #71 a9 g7 + aaAE 99Ry - Fawe 374 - {21 % o
steraTH-uTrEaT

2. FAUTT ITATY : THH TNFTT 9oa, < Trae, TTASIATt 7 7 FTA o HTL0T AT ¥ ST AT
TATTEY oTiHe g



30

THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I1I—SEC.4]

3. FduT anfeqat @ wfagfat f Goft, STl s, arwter, §% = & aw afer (7 ¥ o
ST ST |Ed) AT o HTL0T ST g1 aATAT e <TieT|

4. wfiw g fae srw fRer 1 e gew - =i # fRu o e 3 gea i o rfeer g
ST AT [ReTTHaert & A |

5. FHRTAT SHISAT ; TA T (AT I TRMAT ST ol §eaT (T8 FEHT &9 & A9 92 29075

6. & % forg sferem WAt : 39 % forw wm siqate (staame) &1 39 fam & for srg st #ir
TUET B el (6T SITAT & F1Th =0 98 F Aqdig & AT shrzat =Hir F forw sfaa g
TTET T T =107 (ST o)

BEEKIEIEILE 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

FAATT e * 5,00,000 5,00,000

2 ¥ forw sferaT wrfdert (1,00,000) |  1,00,000 -

T arfea* 1,04,00,000 1,05,00,000

FAFT T (1,000) (1,000)

& areaat 1,03,99,000 1,04,99,000

THTAT THISAT 9,99,000 | 9606.6930 10,08,607.6930

gt TS F Aed g 10.4094 10.4094

* [Aaer FT {7 137 & 2107 SaRariad gargl”

=T, S0 HETed T, AL
[FR=Ta=-111/4/5197./750/2023-24]

. Yo [ty BfRams siv BEm aifgsmr (Ww [@fd) @EFw, 2015 &1 Afeg=ar 9

PR/ 12/3STU/139/9, F 737 fa77# 19 W, 2015 &1 T % LTSI, STETLTIIT, ST
I, &< 4, §&47 168 # wH1id & m o & o+ varq dow fAfey f{faams «iw fFwm
wTteEReer (Yo fAfd) (wam "emew) fAfREw, 2016, #1 Afee@=AT ST dUwSIEU/
12/3Suer/139/9 F gy faATw 8 fAdew, 2016 T 9Td o LTSI, AHTLTIT, AN 111, €< 4,
T 343 #, Hera ey fAfFemas i e srfarreor (Fera 7t (facfier wrerrerm) &t 2020
T SATELAAT & ORI T/12/37Sue/139/9 % g7 faai® 5 weadt, 2020 T 9T & o9,
SHETETIOT, 9T 111, ©< 4, HeaT 48 ¥, Torg [Hfer fafaamwe i e arfeawor (Yo ) (qei
wTorere) e, 2020 v srferg=eT & frowsmeEin/12/amesiu=/139/9 F grr A+ 14 w3,
2020 FT 91T F TS, 1L, 9T 111, @< 4, =7 169 #, v At s o o
TTFEEReoT (Yo fTen) (el genge) A=, & =T § Huhaeiu/12/:siua/139/9 %
T f2dTF 1 rder, 2021 T AT & TIST9,TETIT0, 9T 11, @< 4, g=ar 139 #, dor fAfer
s s e st (Foa [ (q=ar q@eree) e, 2021 @ safeg=ar
PURTETT/12/3esHuer/139/9% 51T 271 25 A%, 2021 T ATLd & TSI, ETLT0T, ST 111,
gT 4, "ear 202 # s Yo Aty Affamas siv e wriesreor (Yo [fe) (T \erem)
e, 2021 =7 Afag=aT § FURaAEu/12/:M7sua/139/9 F gRT faqi® 15 JaTs, 2021 &1
qTEA o TISTY, STHTET, 917 3, TS 4, §eaT 286 | YehTTrd foha a2 o |




[9TT HHl—aTE 4] T T TSI © T 31

PENSION FUND REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTIFICATION
New Delhi, the 9th February, 2024

PENSION FUND REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (PENSION FUND)
(AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS, 2023

No. PFRDA/16/3/29/0089/2017-REG-PF.—In exercise of the powers conferred by sub-section (1) of
section 52 read with clauses (e) (m), (n), (0) and (p) of sub-section (2) thereof of the Pension Fund Regulatory and
Development Authority Act, 2013 (23 of 2013), the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority hereby
makes the following regulations to amend the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension Fund)
Regulations, 2015, namely:-

1. These regulations may be called the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension Fund)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2023.

2. These shall come into force on the date of their publication in the official gazette.

3. In the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension Fund) Regulations, 2015, as amended

from time to time (hereinafter referred to as ‘the principal regulations’), the following amendments are made.

. In sub-regulation (1) of regulation 1 of the principal regulations, the objective of regulation shall be
substituted as follows:

“The objective of the regulations is establishing, developing and regulating pension funds and protecting the interests
of subscribers.”

1. In sub-regulation (1) of regulation 2 of the principal regulations,
i. clause (b) ‘Business Day’ shall be substituted as follows:
“(b) “business day” means days on which all of the following are operational to transact business-
(i) designated Branch of Trustee Bank;
(i) stock exchange for equity and bond market; and
(iif) Government securities market;”
ii. clause (c) shall be substituted as follows:

“(c) “compliance officer” means an employee of the pension fund designated as such by the Board of Pension
Fund for compliance of the provisions of the Act, rules regulations, guidelines, circulars, instructions and
directions issued by the Authority;”

iii. after clause (c), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:-

“(cc) “key personnel of the pension fund” shall include the chief executive officer, the chief investment officer,
the chief risk officer, the chief information security officer, the head of operations and compliance officer, any
other person designated by the board of the pension fund and such other personnel of the pension fund as may be
instructed to be so designated, by the Authority;”

iv. clause (d) shall be deleted;
v. after clause (e) the following clause shall be inserted, namely:

“(ea) “pension Scheme” for the purpose of this regulation shall mean the pension scheme defined under section
12 of the Act, and includes Atal Pension Yojana administered by the Authority;”

vi. clause (f) shall be substituted as follows:

“(f) (1) “principal officer of the pension fund” means the board of directors, key personnel and any person in
accordance with whose directions or instructions the board of directors or any one or more directors is or are
accustomed to act as such;

(ii) “principal officer of the sponsor” shall mean its key managerial personnel as defined under section 2(51) of
the Companies Act, 2013;”

vii. clause (g) shall be substituted as follows:

“(g) “networth” shall mean as defined under section 2(57) of the Companies Act, 2013;”
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viii.

VI.

VII.

VIIL.

clause (h) the definition of ‘sponsor’ shall be substituted as follows:

“(h) “sponsor” means a body corporate who holds twenty per cent. or more of paid-up equity capital in the
pension fund and qualifies the eligibility conditions specified for a sponsor;”

Sub-regulation (2) of regulation 2 of the principal regulations shall be deleted;
Regulation 3 of the principal regulations shall be deleted;
Regulation 4 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“4. Application for registration and application fee.-(1) An applicant desirous to act as a sponsor of a pension
fund, may submit an application as and when the selection process for appointment is initiated by the Authority,
upon fulfilling of: -

(@) the eligibility conditions specified under these regulations; and
(b) such other conditions laid down in the selection process whenever initiated.

(2) The application shall be made in the format as provided in the selection process for appointment and
accompanied by a non-refundable application fee along with applicable taxes and levies thereon as specified in
Schedule II1.”

Regulation 5 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“5. Application to conform to requirements.- (1) An application under regulation shall be liable to be rejected
on any of the following grounds: -

(a) is incomplete and does not contain such information as sought by the Authority;

(b) does not conform to the provisions of the Act regulations, guidelines, circulars, directions and other
instructions, issued by the Authority;

(c) is incorrect, false or misleading in nature or omits to disclose material information;

(d) does not fulfil on the date of the application, the eligibility criteria specified under these regulations and as
laid down under the selection process so initiated; or

(e) in the view of the Authority is not in the interest of the public or subscribers or the orderly growth of pension
schemes.

(2) Before rejecting an application on the grounds referred to in sub-regulation (1), the Authority may inform the
applicant to remove the deficiencies within the time provided.

(3) Where the applicant submits false or misleading information or omits to disclose material information, the
application shall be rejected and further no application shall be considered for a period of one year from such
rejection.”

Regulation 6 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“6. Furnishing of information or clarification.- (1)The Authority may require the applicant to furnish any
additional information or clarification, within the time granted , for consideration of the application.

(2) The applicant shall furnish such information and clarification to the satisfaction of the Authority within the
time granted , including making of presentation to the Authority, if so required.

(3) The applicant shall submit to the Authority any material change in the information furnished during
pendency of the application, within fifteen days of occurrence of such change.”

Regulation 7 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“7. Verification of information.- (1) While considering the application, the Authority may verify the
information submitted in any manner including physical verification of documents, office space, infrastructure
and technological capabilities, which the applicant is required to possess.

(2) For the purpose of sub-regulation (1), the Authority may engage the services of any person or instruct any of
its officers to do so.”

Regulation 8 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“8. Eligibility criteria.- (1) An applicant on the date of its application, shall satisfy the following criteria to act
as a sponsor of a pension fund.-

(a) have at least five years’ experience of fund management (comprising of both equity and debt);
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(b) is engaged in financial business activity and regulated by Reserve Bank of India, or Securities and Exchange
Board of India, or Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India;

(c) intended joint ventures are eligible to apply provided one or more of the joint venture partner(s) fulfil the
eligibility criteria to act as a sponsor on the date of making the application. The applicant(s) while making the
application shall submit a binding memorandum of understanding between the partners of the intended joint
venture, that upon acceptance of the application as sponsor, a pension fund shall be established:;

(d) individually or jointly have a positive net worth of at least fifty crore rupees on the last day of each of the
preceding five financial years and at least twenty-five crore rupees of paid-up equity capital on the date of
application;

(e) have profit after tax in at least three of the preceding five financial years and no cash losses in the last
preceding five financial years.

Explanation.- Cash loss means (i) In case of a company preparing its financial statements in accordance with
accounting standards (AS), the figure of net profit/loss after taxes shown by the statement of profit and loss is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature such as depreciation, amortization, and impairment
loss or its reversal. (ii) In case of a company preparing its financial statements in accordance with Indian
accounting standards (Ind AS), the figure of profit or loss (excluding other comprehensive income) shown by the
statement of profit and loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature such as depreciation,
amortization and impairment loss or its reversal.;

(f) fulfil the additional terms and conditions of the selection process initiated by the Authority; and
(9) the applicant and its principal officer(s) is a ‘fit and proper person’ as specified in Schedule I1.
(2) The sponsor of a pension fund, upon being permitted by the Authority, shall:

(a) incorporate a pension fund as a company under the Companies Act, 2013 and shall have the name ‘Pension
Fund’ incorporated in its name clause.

Provided that pension fund(s) already registered with Authority shall comply with the provisions of this clause
within a period of twelve months from the date of notification of these amendment to regulations;

(b) ensure that the pension fund maintains a minimum net worth of fifty crore rupees at all times;

(c) ensure that the aggregate holding of equity shares by a foreign company either by itself or through its
subsidiary companies or its nominees or by an individual or by an association of persons whether registered or
not under any law of a country outside India taken in aggregate in the pension fund shall not exceed seventy four
per cent. of the paid-up capital of such fund or such percentage as may be approved for an Indian Insurance
Company under the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 (4 of 1938), whichever is higher. The calculation of
foreign investment for this purpose shall be done in accordance with the relevant rules notified by the Central
Government or the regulations, guidelines, circulars, directions and instructions issued by the Authority for the
said purpose;

(d) ensure that the pension fund shall have the ability to provide minimum assured return scheme as per the Act;
(e) ensure that atleast fifty per cent. of the directors of the pension fund are independent directors;

(f) not have control or hold any equity stake directly or through its subsidiary company in any other pension
fund regulated by the Authority.

Explanation: control means as defined under section 2(27) of the Companies Act, 2013;

(9) ensure that no director on the board of a pension fund shall be a director on the board of any other pension
fund registered with the Authority;

(h) not have control or hold twenty per cent. or more equity capital in either the central recordkeeping agency or
custodian or trustee bank;

(i) facilitate the pension fund with necessary infrastructure, dedicated manpower, information technology,
systems and procedures with capabilities to adapt to future changes for undertaking the activity of pension fund.

Provided that the pension fund after twelve months from the date of commencement of business shall perform its
obligations, independently with dedicated manpower, infrastructure, information technology, systems and
procedures;

(j) ensure that atleast fifty per cent. of the directors of the pension fund have professional experience in financial
services and related field;
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XI.

(k) ensure that the key personnel of pension funds have relevant qualifications and experience in the requisite
fields;

Provided that an officer of the pension fund who is key personnel, may, after approval of the Authority, be
designated to perform the functions of another key personnel; and

(I) ensure that pension fund and its principal officer(s) is a ‘fit and proper person’ as specified in Schedule II.

(3) An applicant not fulfilling any of the criteria specified in clause(g) of sub-regulation (1) and clause (f) to (I)
of sub-regulation (2), may seek an exemption from the Authority citing reasons therefor.

(4) Nothing in these regulations, shall confer the applicant any right to be granted any exemption sought for.

(5) The Authority may in interest of the subscribers for reasons to be recorded in writing, grant such exemption.
The Authority may in such circumstances impose such additional conditions as it may deem fit for grant of
certificate of registration.

(6) The decision of the Authority, as to whether any applicant satisfies the eligibility criteria shall be final.

(7) Mere submission of an application or satisfaction of eligibility criteria shall not confer the applicant any
vested right to act as a sponsor of a pension fund.”

Regulation 9 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:-

“9. Procedure for grant of certificate of registration, registration fees and period of validity of certificate
of registration.- (1) An application received in response to the Authority’s invitation for selection of sponsor of
a pension fund, shall be evaluated in accordance with the eligibility criteria specified in these regulations and the
selection process as laid down in the guidelines.

(2) (a) The Authority upon being satisfied that the applicant is eligible to be a sponsor of a pension fund, it may,
subject to such terms and conditions, as it may determine, issue a letter of appointment to the applicant to
establish a pension fund.

(b) Upon establishment of the pension fund (by satisfying the eligibility criteria) and on receipt of the non-
refundable registration fee along with applicable taxes and levies thereon from sponsor as specified in Schedule
111, the Authority may grant a certificate of registration to the pension fund in the format as specified in Schedule
I with intimation to the sponsor.

(3) The certificate of registration granted to a pension fund shall remain valid unless suspended or cancelled by
the Authority.

(4) The pension fund shall commence its operations within a period of six months from the date of grant of
certificate of registration. Any extension in the time limit, beyond six months, may be permitted by the Authority
upto another period of six months for reasons to be recorded in writing.

(5) The sponsor shall obtain necessary approvals for establishment and functioning of pension fund from such
authorities, as may be required.”

After Regulation 9 of the principal regulations, the following regulation shall be inserted, namely:-

“9A. Terms and conditions of registration.- (1) The certificate of registration granted to a pension fund shall
be subject to the following conditions, namely.-

(2) the sponsor and the pension fund shall comply at all times with the eligibility requirements as specified under
the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars, instructions and directions issued by the Authority. Any material
change in the information or particulars previously furnished, which have an adverse bearing on its certificate of
registration shall be informed to the Authority within a period of fifteen days;

(b) the sponsor and the pension fund have taken necessary actions and steps to accept the registration as pension
fund for managing the pension schemes and bind themselves for the due performance of their obligations;

(c) the pension fund shall maintain a minimum net worth of fifty crore rupees;

(d) the sponsor and pension fund shall keep the interest of subscribers’ paramount in all matters while managing
the pension schemes and shall avoid any conflict of interest or any undue benefit to sponsors, directors of the
pension fund or associated persons or a special class of subscribers;

(e) the pension fund shall take adequate steps and exercise prudence and due diligence to ensure that the interests
of subscribers are protected,;

(f) the pension fund shall execute such agreements with the parties as specified under these regulations or as
directed by the Authority and shall comply with the terms of the agreements so executed,;
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(9) the pension fund shall maintain confidentiality with respect to all transactions, records, data and information
received while discharging its obligations and shall not, without the prior permission of Authority, produce or
share such data or information as evidence or for any other purpose except as required under the process of law
or as directed by the Authority or the National Pension System Trust;

(h) the sponsor and the pension fund shall comply with the provisions of the Act, the rules, regulations,
guidelines, circulars, directions and instructions issued by the Authority, at all times including, during the period
of suspension of the certificate of registration, as also during the transitory phase of transfer of assets or
documents till completion of all actions as specified under regulation 34;

(i) the pension fund shall ensure the dissemination to Authority, National Pension System Trust, subscriber and
other intermediaries of adequate, accurate, explicit and timely information presented in simple language about
the investment policies, investment objectives, financial position and general affairs of the pension schemes, they
are managing. The pension fund shall communicate requisite information including, as specified in Schedule V
in the format and periodicity as may be determined by the Authority to the subscribers;

(j) the sponsor shall periodically review the desirability or continuance of the pension fund. If substantial
irregularities are observed in any of the pension schemes, sponsor shall immediately report to the Authority of
any special developments in the pension fund;

(K) (i) prior approval of the Authority shall be obtained by the sponsor (or by the entity proposing to become a
sponsor) or pension fund as applicable for change in the shareholding pattern or control in the pension fund
where:

(a) the status as sponsor of pension fund is likely to undergo a change;
(b) the pension fund is likely to cease to be a government company; or

(c) any change (in accordance with guidelines issued) in foreign holding in the pension fund attracting restriction
under Section 24 of the Act;

(ii) prior approval of the Authority shall be obtained by the sponsor and pension fund, as applicable, for proposed
change in its shareholding pattern in excess of five per cent.

Provided that any other change in shareholding pattern of the pension fund, other than the above shall be
informed to the Authority, within seven days by the pension fund;

(iii) any change in key personnel or principal officer of the pension fund shall be reported to the Authority within
fifteen days.

Explanation.— “Government company” shall mean as defined under section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013
(18 of 2013);

(I) the pension fund shall comply with the ‘Code of Conduct’ specified in Schedule VI;

(m)the pension fund shall not delegate any core function to any third party. Delegation of any non-core function
shall be done only with the prior approval of the Authority;

(n) the pension fund shall not engage in any other activity except those relating to pension schemes or funds
regulated by the Authority;

(o) the pension fund shall comply with the cyber security policy, outsourcing policy, common stewardship code,
Prevention of Money Laundering Act (PMLA) to the extent applicable to it, valuation guidelines, broker
empanelment, auditor appointment and voting policy on assets held in the name of National Pension System
Trust, issued by the Authority for the purpose;

(p) the pension fund shall not hold any direct equity stake in any other pension fund regulated by the Authority;

(g) the pension fund shall not have control or hold twenty per cent. or more equity capital in either the central
recordkeeping agency or custodian or Trustee Bank; and

(r) the pension fund shall provide minimum assured return scheme in accordance with the notification of the said
scheme by the Authority.”

XIl.  Regulation 10 of the principal regulations, shall be substituted as follows:

“10. Documentation with intermediaries.- (1) Before commencement of operations, the pension fund shall
inter alia execute the following agreements:-

(@) Investment Management Agreement with the National Pension System Trust as specified in Schedule XI;

(b) Non-Disclosure Agreement with the National Pension System Trust;
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(c) agreements with custodian as specified in Schedule 1X;

(d) enter into arrangements with central recordkeeping agency and Trustee Bank as specified in Schedule VIII;
and

(e) any other agreement or arrangements with intermediaries as may be specified by the Authority.

(2) In case of any divergence between the intermediaries on the interpretation of the agreements, the same shall
be forwarded for such determination by the Authority, whose decision shall be final and binding.

(3) The pension fund shall obtain necessary approvals from such authorities, under applicable laws and shall
comply with the documentation requirements with other intermediaries pertaining to opening of accounts,
authorizing signatories, obtaining digital signatures, providing connectivity, software installation and other like
matters, so that it suffers no disability under law or otherwise to act as pension fund.”

XIII. Regulation 11 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“11. Commencement of business.- (1) Upon completion of documentation by the pension fund and other related
activities for commencing its operations, the pension fund shall seek certificate of commencement of business
from the Authority.

(2) At the time of seeking the certificate of commencement of business, pension fund shall warrant that it has the
necessary approvals and permission to act as a pension fund and suffers from no disability in law or otherwise, to
act as such.

(3) The Authority upon being satisfied that the pension fund is equipped to commence its operations for
managing the pension schemes, may issue “certificate of commencement of business” to the pension fund in the
format specified in Schedule IV pursuant to which the pension fund shall operationalize its activity(s).”

XIV. Regulation 12 of the principal regulations shall be deleted;
XV. Regulation 13 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“13. Annual Fee.- The pension fund shall deposit with the Authority, by 10th day of subsequent month of each
quarter or within ten days of grant of certificate of registration, the annual fee along with applicable taxes and
levies thereon , as specified in Schedule III or as may be determined by the Authority.”

XVI. Regulation 14 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“14. Schemes and investment guidelines.- (1) The pension fund shall manage the pension schemes in
accordance with the investment guidelines issued by the Authority for the benefit of subscribers.

(2) No pension fund shall, directly or indirectly invest outside India, the funds of subscribers.

(3) There shall not be any implicit or explicit assurance of benefits except under market-based guarantees
mechanism to be purchased by the subscriber.

(4) The subscriber, seeking minimum assured returns, shall have an option to invest his funds in such schemes as
may be notified by the Authority.

(5) The pension fund shall provide an option to subscribers for investing in different asset classes as notified by
the Authority including one hundred per cent. in Government securities.”

XVILI. Regulation 15 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“15. Valuation of scheme assets.- The assets or securities held in the name of National Pension System Trust
and managed by pension funds under the pension schemes shall be valued in accordance with the valuation
guidelines issued by the Authority.”

XVIII. Regulation 16 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“16. Prudential norms for income recognition, asset classification and provisioning.- (1) In respect of assets
or securities below investment grade, the recognition of income, its classification and provisioning shall be in
compliance with the guidelines issued by the Authority.

(2) The pension fund shall monitor the identified below investment grade assets or securities and initiate
recovery measures for such assets in association with National Pension System Trust and report to the
Authority.”

XIX. Regulation 17 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“17. Books of accounts and records.- (1) The pension fund shall maintain books and records of the operation of
pension schemes and ensure compliance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Companies Act,
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2013, and any other law and provide information in such mode and manner, as may be determined by the
Authority.

(2) The pension fund shall maintain proper books of accounts, records and documents, for each scheme so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the schemes and shall intimate to the Authority and National
Pension System Trust, the place where such books of account, records and documents are maintained, if not
maintained at the registered office of the pension fund. Pension fund shall be solely responsible for the
maintenance and correctness of books of accounts, records and documents.

(3) The pension fund shall follow the accounting policies as determined by the Authority.”
XX. Regulation 18 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“18. Net asset value (NAV) for schemes.- (1)The face value of each unit of the pension schemes shall be ten
rupees.

(2) The pension fund shall compute the net asset value of each scheme by dividing the net assets of the scheme
by the number of units outstanding as on the date of valuation.

Explanation:- Net assets means value of the scheme assets derived as per valuation guidelines, accruals less
allowable charges (payables/outstanding);

(@) allowable charges shall include:
(i) investment management fees as determined through the selection process;

(ii) custodian fees as determined through the selection process and depository and settlement charges as per
actuals;

(iii) brokerage charges upto 0.03% on equity transactions or as permitted by the Authority;
(iv) National Pension System Trust charges as allowed by Authority; and

(v) applicable taxes and levies thereon.

The methodology for NAV calculation shall be as provided in Schedule XII.

(3) The pension fund shall calculate and declare the NAV of units for each pension scheme at the close of each
business day within the time determined by the Authority.

(4) The pension fund shall create or redeem units at the declared NAV for each business day based on
instructions received from central recordkeeping agency for contributions receipts and redemption requests.

(5) The pension fund shall be responsible for the computation of scheme NAV and its communication to central
recordkeeping agency based on which units are allocated or redeemed to subscribers by central recordkeeping
agency.”

XXI. Regulation 19 of the principal regulations shall be substituted with the follows:

“19. Investment management fee.- (1)The pension fund shall be entitled to charge an investment management
fee from the corpus of the pension schemes for the services rendered.

(2) The mode and manner of charging the investment management fee shall be determined by the Authority and
shall be subject to such revision as deemed necessary in subscribers’ interest and for orderly growth of the
pension schemes.”

XXII.  Regulation 20 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“20. Annual Report and Auditors Report.- (1) The pension fund shall prepare an annual report in respect of
each financial year as detailed in Schedule VII, in a true and fair manner, in compliance with these regulations
and guidelines issued by the Authority;

The appointment of statutory auditor by the pension fund and scheme auditors by National Pension System Trust
shall be in compliance of the guidelines and circulars issued by the Authority.

(2) The pension fund shall get the financial statements of the pension schemes audited in the manner determined
by the Authority and the auditor’s report shall form a part of the annual report of the pension fund. The scheme
auditors shall independently report to the National Pension System Trust.

(3) The pension fund shall

(a) within sixty days from the date of closure of each financial year submit to National Pension System Trust for
approval the annual report (inclusive of financial statements of the pension schemes and auditor report) duly
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approved by the board of directors of pension fund. The board of trustees of the National Pension System Trust
shall thereafter approve and counter sign the financial statements of the pension schemes.

(b) resolve the observations of the National Pension System Trust, if any, within a period of fifteen days from the
date of receipt.

(c) submit the annual report to the Authority within ninety days from the date of closure of each financial year.

(4) Every balance sheet and revenue account of the pension schemes shall be in conformity with the Accounting
Standards as notified under Companies Act, 2013, from time to time except AS 3 (Cash Flow Statement) and AS
17 (Segmental Reporting) to the extent applicable to pension schemes and not inconsistent with these
regulations.

(5) The annual report and portfolio details of each scheme shall be prominently placed on the website of the
pension fund after approval of the National Pension System Trust, within ninety days from the date of closure of
each financial year.

(6) The scheme wise annual report or an abridged summary thereof shall be provided by the pension fund to the
central recordkeeping agency for onward transmission to subscribers. The abridged summary to subscribers shall
carry a note that the annual report is available on the website of the pension fund and the weblink page of the
annual report shall be shared with central recordkeeping agency.

(7) The annual report shall be available for inspection at the head office of the pension fund and a copy thereof
shall be made available to any subscriber on payment of such nominal fee, not exceeding two hundred rupees.

(8) The pension fund shall within one month from the close of each half year that is 31" March and 30"
September, disclose its scheme wise unaudited financial statements along with statement of scheme portfolio on
its website.

(9) The half-yearly unaudited report referred in sub-regulation (9) shall contain such details, which are necessary
for the purpose of providing a true and fair view of the operations of scheme, as determined by the Authority.

(10) The annual report of schemes managed by the pension fund shall include Directors’ responsibility
statement, certificate by CEO and head of operations, which shall include a declaration in respect of following
key responsibilities:

(a) preparation and presentation of scheme financial statements provide a true and correct view of scheme state
of affairs and scheme NAV;

(b) adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial processes and digital architecture controls;

(c) compliance with Act, rules regulations, Investment Guidelines, Valuation Guidelines, Stewardship code,
voting policy and other applicable laws; and

(d) adherence to Code of Conduct.”
XXIIl.  Regulation 21 of the principal regulations shall be deleted;
XXIV. Regulation 22 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“22. Duties and functions of pension fund.- (1)The management of pension schemes shall be carried in
accordance with the objective of the schemes, provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars,
directions and instructions issued by the Authority and the provisions of the National Pension System trust deed,
within the timelines determined by the Authority and the National Pension System Trust.

(2) The day-to-day management of the pension schemes shall be done by the pension fund on behalf of the
National Pension System Trust.

(3) The pension fund shall, at all times render high standards of fund management services, exercise reasonable
care, prudence, professional skill, promptness, diligence and vigilance while discharging its duties in the best
interests of the subscribers. The pension fund shall avoid speculative investments or transactions.

(4) The pension fund shall employ qualified, trained professionals and employees with integrity. The pension
fund shall be responsible for the acts of commissions or omissions by its employees, agents or authorised persons
whose services have been procured and be independently accountable and liable for their acts. The liability shall
survive despite the suspension or cancellation of certificate of registration of the pension fund or such action that
may be taken by the Authority, for protection of the interest of the subscribers.

(5) The pension fund shall co-ordinate its activities with other intermediaries and permitted entities and inter alia
enter into agreements, have technological platforms for undertaking its functional obligations.
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(6) The pension fund shall maintain books of accounts, records, registers and documents relating to investment
decisions and the operations of the pension schemes to ensure compliance with the regulations, guidelines,
circulars and other instructions issued by the Authority and facilitate audit trail of transactions and ensure
business continuity at all times.

(7) The pension fund shall submit periodical compliance reports as required under these regulations, guidelines
and circulars, or as may be called for by the Authority, or the National Pension System Trust.

(8) The pension fund shall undertake public disclosure of information for the benefit of subscribers in the mode
and manner specified in Schedule V or as may be determined by the Authority.

(9) The pension fund shall adopt best governance practices for investments and risk management viz.
constitution of Investment Committee and Risk Management Committee, whose composition, functions and
duties shall be such as specified in Schedule X and also constitute an Audit Committee, and Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

(10) The pension fund shall prevent conflict of interest that may arise while discharging its obligations as a
pension fund and report such instances to the National Pension System Trust.

(11) The pension fund shall ensure exclusivity and segregation of pension fund activities from activities of its
Sponsors.

(12) The pension fund shall ensure confidentiality with respect to subscribers’ information and activities relating
to the pension fund and protection of all information within its control and share such information with the
Authority or National Pension System Trust or any other intermediary or as may be required under the provisions
of any other law.

(13) The pension fund shall provide such representations and warranties and act in accordance with the same, as
may be necessary for the protection of subscribers’ interest.

(14) The pension fund shall pay fees, charges, levies and security deposit as may be determined by the Authority.

(15) The pension fund shall be subject to review of its operations and performance by the National Pension
System Trust.

(16) The pension fund shall be subject to audit of pension schemes by the National Pension System Trust.
(17) The pension fund shall be subject to other audit and inspection by the Authority.

(18) The pension fund which is registered as a point of presence (PoP), shall maintain separate infrastructure,
manpower, accounts including details of revenue and expenditure in order to maintain arm’s length distance
from its fund management activities.

(19) The pension fund shall comply with the disclosure requirements as applicable to a public company under the
Companies Act, 2013 for adopting best governance practices and the compliance officer shall ensure such
compliance.

(20) Upon notification by the Authority of the scheme under section (20)(2)(d) (b) of the Act, pension fund shall
offer such schemes within the timeline specified by the Authority.

(21) The Pension Fund shall:

(i) take all measures necessary for prevention of fraud, develop and follow a fraud prevention and mitigation
policy in accordance with guidelines issued by Authority;

(ii) lay down internal controls to be followed and ensure that such controls are adequate and operating
effectively; and

(iii) make provision for indemnifying the subscriber for any loss on account of fraud or negligence on the part of
the pension fund, which has been established.”

XXV. Sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 23 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“23. Monitoring, review and evaluating systems and controls.- (1) The pension fund shall have mechanisms
for reviewing, monitoring and evaluating the controls, systems, procedures and safeguards.”

XXVI. Regulation 24 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“24. Appointment of compliance officer.- (1)The pension fund shall appoint a compliance officer who shall be
responsible for monitoring the compliance of the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars,
directions and instructions issued by the Authority.
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(2) The compliance officer shall immediately and independently report any non-compliance observed to the
Authority and the National Pension System Trust.

(3) The compliance officer shall prepare a compliance certificate stating that pension fund has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations, have such certificate approved by the board of pension fund and submit the
same to the Authority, with observations of the board, if any.”

XXVII. Regulation 25 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“25. Information to Authority or National Pension System Trust.- (1) The Authority or the National Pension
System Trust may, call for any information from a pension fund.

(2) It shall be the duty of the pension fund to furnish such information within such period as the Authority or the
National Pension System Trust may determine.”

XXVIII. Sub-regulation (1) and (2) of Regulation 26 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:
“26. Inspection and audit.- (1) The Authority shall inspect pension fund at regular intervals as it deems fit.

Notwithstanding the above, it may at any time as it deems fit undertake directly or appoint an auditor or through
its authorized representative conduct an inspection or audit of the books, accounts, records including the call
records and electronic records and documents of a pension fund for the purposes as specified under this
regulation.

(2) The purposes referred to in sub-regulation (1) may include:
(a) ascertaining the infrastructural capabilities, systems and procedures;

(b) ensuring that the books of account, records including electronic records and documents are being maintained
in the manner required under these regulations;

(c) ascertaining whether adequate internal control systems, procedures and safeguards have been established and
are being followed by the pension fund;

(d) ascertaining whether the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars, instructions and
directions issued by the Authority are being complied with;

(e) inquiring into the complaints received from subscribers, intermediaries, or any other person on any matter
having a bearing on the activities of the pension fund; or

(f) inquiring suo motu into such matters as may be deemed fit in the interest of subscribers.”
XXIX. Regulation 27 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“27. Notice before inspection or audit.- (1) Before undertaking an inspection or audit under this chapter, the
Authority or its authorized representative or the auditor shall give ten working days’ notice to the pension fund.

Provided that no notice shall be required if the Authority is satisfied that an inspection or audit is for immediate
safe guarding of the interest of the subscribers.

(2) During the course of an inspection or audit, the pension fund, whose inspection or audit is being carried out,
shall continue to discharge its obligations as provided in these regulations.”

XXX. Sub-regulation (1) of regulation 28 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“28. Obligations on inspection and audit.- (1) It shall be the duty of the pension fund, which is being inspected
or audited, and of every director, officer and employee thereof, to produce to the Authority, or its authorized
representative or auditor, such books, accounts, records and other documents in its custody or control and furnish
such statements and information relating to its activities, within such time as may be provided.”

XXXI. Regulation 29 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“29. Procedure of audit.- The manner in which the internal audit, scheme audit, concurrent audit and other
audits of the pension fund shall be conducted will be as determined by the Authority.”

XXXII. In regulation 30 of the principal regulations after sub-regulation (2), a new sub-regulation (3) shall be
inserted as follows:

“(3) The report submitted by the authorized person or any documents or information so collected by such person,
during the course of inspection or audit, would be admissible in any investigation or inquiry or any other
proceedings before the Authority.”

XXXI111. Regulation 33 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:
“33. Cancellation or suspension of certificate of registration.- (1) Where a pension fund or its sponsor:-

(@) fails to comply with any of the terms and conditions of the certificate of registration or the letter of
appointment as the case may be;
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(b) contravenes the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars, instructions and directions
issued;

(c) has its business transferred to or amalgamated with another pension fund or sponsor without the prior
approval of the Authority;

(d) commits any acts of defaults as mentioned under section 28 of the Act;
(e) fails to pay the fee payable to the Authority along with applicable taxes;

(f) ceases to carry on activity or voluntarily applies to withdraw the certificate of registration granted by the
Authority;

(9) fails to observe or perform any representation, warranty or undertaking given by it or fails to correct any
breach or failure within the timeliness provided by the Authority to do so;

(h) indulges in unfair trade practices or fraudulent practices or conducts its business in a manner prejudicial to
the orderly growth of the pension schemes or adversely affecting the interests of subscribers;

(i) does not co-operate in any inquiry conducted by the Authority;

(j) submits to the Authority a false statement or information which has a material effect on the rights, obligations
or interests of the Authority or the subscribers or any intermediary;

(K) does not submit periodical returns as required by the Authority;
(1) fails to furnish any information as required by the Authority relating to its pension activity;

(m)undergoes a change in the ownership, management or key personnel which in the opinion of the Authority
adversely affects the interest of the subscribers;

(n) generates returns significantly and consistently below market or peer benchmarks;

(o) fails to honour the guarantee assured to subscriber under the minimum assured return scheme referred to
under section 20(2)(d)(b) of the Act; or

(p) fails to comply with any directions issued by the Authority in the interest of the subscribers or the orderly
growth of the pension scheme.

(2) The Authority may, by order, without prejudice to any other action, suspend or cancel the certificate of
registration, or pass any order or direction, as may be deemed appropriate.

(3) No order of suspension or cancellation of registration shall be made unless the person concerned has been
given a reasonable opportunity of being heard under an inquiry conducted as per the regulations.”

XXXIV. After Regulation 33 of the principal regulations, the following regulation shall be inserted, namely:- :

“33A. Surrender of certificate of registration.- (1) A pension fund may surrender its certificate of registration
by making a request to the Authority.

(2) For consideration of such request, the Authority may require the pension fund to satisfy the following—

(a) arrangements made by it for transfer of records, funds or securities of the subscribers as directed by the
Authority, at its own cost and expense and ensure continuity of service to subscribers;

(b) rectifying the defaults and pending actions, if any;
(c) redressal of subscriber grievances; and
(d) any other measures to be taken in the interest of the subscribers.

(3) While considering the request for surrender, the Authority may impose such conditions upon the pension
fund as it deems fit for the protection of interest of the subscribers.

(4) No request for surrender shall be entertained from a pension fund in respect of which any investigation,
inquiry or adjudication has been initiated or is contemplated by the Authority.

(5) No surrender shall be permitted unless the Authority is satisfied that the pension fund has complied with or
has taken steps to comply with the requirements under sub-regulation (2) and other conditions, if any, under sub-
regulation (3).

(6) Where the Authority has accepted the request for surrender, it shall cancel the certificate of registration
granted to the pension fund and the letter of appointment issued to sponsor and inform them within seven
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working days and place such information on its website and also direct the entity to place the information on its
website and disseminate the information, in such manner, as may be required.”

XXXV. Regulation 34 of the principal regulations shall be substituted as follows:

“34. Effect of suspension or cancellation of certificate.- (1) On and from the date of suspension of the
certificate of registration, the pension fund shall, where directed-

(a) cease to transact fresh business under the National Pension System or other pension schemes, as the case may
be;

(b) take such action in respect of the assets, records, documents or information that may be in the custody or
control of the pension fund, within the time limit and in the manner as may be required under the relevant
regulations or as may be directed by the Authority;

(c) transfer at its own cost the assets, records, documents or information that are in its custody or control to
another pension fund in the form and manner as may be directed by the Authority;

(d) the pension fund or sponsor where applicable shall at its cost and expense provide all the necessary support in
ensuring smooth transfer of all the assets under its management and where required by the National Pension
System Trust or the Authority, make such public announcement or disclosure as may be conducive to
subscriber’s interest, regarding such transfer of assets. It shall also ensure that the transfer of all the relevant
documents, record or information is made in accordance with the directions issued by the Authority;

(e) the transfer of such assets shall be undertaken in accordance with the guidelines or instructions that may be
issued by the Authority; and

(f) the sponsor or pension fund shall be subject to the directions of the Authority until all such transfers or
actions are completed or until, the certificate of registration remains suspended.

(2) On and from the date of cancellation of the certificate of registration, the concerned pension fund shall-
(a) cease to carry on and wind up its affairs qua the activities in respect of which registration has been granted;

(b) return the certificate of registration so cancelled to the Authority and inform such other agencies, as may be
directed by the Authority with regard to the said fact and disseminate the information on its website and in such
other manner as may be directed;

(c) carry out any other directions within the time limits given by the Authority, and report compliance of the
same; and

(d) make provisions as regards liability incurred or assumed by it.”

XXXVI. In Schedule | (Certificate of Registration) of the principal regulations, the symbols, words and
numerals,

i. “regulation 3(1)” shall be substituted with “regulation 9(2)(b)”; and
ii. “See regulations 9(2)” shall be substituted with “see regulation 9(2)(b)”.

XXXVII. Schedule IT (CRITERIA FOR ‘FIT and PROPER”) of the principal regulations, shall be substituted as
follows:-

“SCHEDULE 11
PENSION FUND REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(PENSION FUND) REGULATIONS, 2015
[see regulations 8(1)(g) & 8(2)(1)]
CRITERIA FOR ‘FIT AND PROPER’

For determining whether the applicant or the sponsor or the pension fund or their principal officer is a 'fit and proper
person', the Authority may take into account any factors as it deems fit, including but not limited to the following
criteria:

(Part-A)
(a) financial integrity;
(b) absence of convictions or civil liabilities;
(c) competence;
(d) good reputation and character;
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(e) efficiency and honesty; and

(f) financial solvency and net worth.

(Part-B)

A person shall not be considered as a" fit and proper person" if any of the following disqualifications are incurred:-

(1)

)

3)

(4)
()
(6)

(7)
(8)

©)

(10)
(11)
(12)

(13)

criminal complaint or information under section 154 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 (2 of 1974) has
been filed against such person by the Authority and which is pending;

charge sheet has been filed against such person by any enforcement agency in matters concerning economic
offences and is pending;

an order of restraint, prohibition or debarment has been passed against such person by the Authority or any
financial regulator or enforcement agency in any matter concerning securities laws or financial markets or
insurance law and a period of three years from the date of expiry of period specified in the order has not
elapsed,;

license or registration has been cancelled by any financial sector regulators during last five years;
recovery proceedings have been initiated by the Authority against such person and are pending;

an order of conviction has been passed against such person by a court for any offence involving moral turpitude
or involving economic offences or fraud;

any winding up proceedings have been initiated or an order for winding up has been passed against such person;

any insolvency proceeding is pending against such person or where he has been declared insolvent and not
discharged;

such person has been found to be of unsound mind by a court of competent jurisdiction and the finding is in
force;

such person has been categorized as a willful defaulter;
such person has been declared a fugitive economic offender;

there is an order or notice of any action or investigation or other proceedings of any nature whatsoever, against
the person by any governmental or statutory authority which would restrain, prohibit or otherwise challenge or
impede the performance of obligations and that there is adverse proceedings against it from any financial sector
regulator including the Reserve Bank of India, Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority or the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, of a nature that could adversely affect the ability to provide the
services as sponsor; or

any other disqualification as may be specified by the Authority.”

XXXVIII. PART A of Schedule 11l (Fees payable under the regulations) of the principal regulations

shall be substituted as follows:
“SCHEDULE II1

PENSION FUND REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (PENSION FUND)
REGULATIONS, 2015

[see regulations 4(2), 9(2)(b) and 13]
FEES PAYABLE UNDER THE REGULATIONS
PART A
AMOUNT TO BE PAID AS FEES

S | Type of fee | Amount Nature and calculation Time of payment
No
1. | Application | Rs  10,00,000 along  with | Non-Refundable At the time of submission of
applicable taxes and levies thereon application for acting as
Fee Flat Rate sponsor of pension fund
2. | Registration | Rs  25,00,000 along  with | Non-Refundable At the time of grant of
fee applicable taxes and levies thereon certificate of registration

Flat Rate
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3. | Annual fee | As determined by the Authority | Non-Refundable By 10th day of subsequent
from time to time, subject to % of AUM month of each quarter or
minimum Rs 10,00,000 per annum within ten days of grant of
(Rs 2,50,000 per quarter or part | The amount of assets under | certificate of registration,
thereof), along with applicable | management shall  be | payable on quarterly basis.”
taxes and levies thereon. considered on the last day
of preceding quarter

XXXIX. In Schedule 1V (CERTIFICATE FOR COMMENCEMENT OF BUSINESS) of the principal
regulations, the words “CERTIFICATE FOR COMMENCEMENT OF BUSINESS” shall be substituted with
“CERTIFICATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF BUSINESS”.

XL. In Schedule V (Reports and Disclosure) of the principal regulations, the symbols, words and numerals,
“See regulations 12(h) and 22(8)” shall be substituted with “see regulations 9A(1)(i) and 22(8)”.

XLI.  In Schedule VI (Code of Conduct) of the principal regulations, the symbols, words and numerals, “See
regulations 12(k) and 21” shall be substituted with “see regulation 9A(1)(1)”.

XLII.  After clause (d) in Part 111 (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION) in Schedule VI (CODE OF
CONDUCT) of the principal regulations, a new clause (e) shall be inserted, namely.-

“(e) A pension fund shall disclose the scheme returns in the manner and in the format as available in public
domain hosted by National Pension System Trust. For the purpose of scheme performance comparison amongst
its peers, pension fund shall use the returns for only those dates for which returns are published by National
Pension System Trust and shall disclose the returns of all pension funds. In case of pension fund desires to
disclose returns of its own scheme only, in such case benchmark return for the scheme shall also be disclosed
and no ranking amongst its peers shall be provided”.

XLII.  Schedule VII (FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDIT REPORT) of the principal regulations shall
be substituted as follows:

“SCHEDULE VII
PENSION FUND REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(PENSION FUND) REGULATIONS, 2015
[See regulation 20]
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDIT REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT

n. Annual Report
The annual report shall contain—
(i)  Report on the operations of each scheme during the financial year and economic scenario;
(if)  Brief statement on the following aspects, namely:-

(a) Liabilities and responsibilities of the pension fund,;

(b) Investment objective of each scheme;

(c) Basis and policy of investments underlying the scheme;

(d) Valuation of scheme investments

(e) Comments on the performance of the scheme with comparison with specified benchmark.
(iii)  Abridged version of Balance Sheet and Revenue account as per para V11 of the Schedule
(iv) Directors’ Responsibility Statement as per Para V1 in relation to Scheme
(v)  Consolidated financial statements of all schemes managed by the pension fund
(vi)  Accounting Policies as per Para IX of this schedule
(vii) Balance Sheet and Revenue Account in accordance with Paras 11 and I11 of this Schedule;
(viii) Auditor’s Report in accordance with Para IV of this Schedule;

(ix) Statement giving “key statistics” of schemes in accordance with Para V of this Schedule
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(x)
(.
(M)

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

v)

(vi)

Notes to account as per Para V1I1 of this schedule.
Contents of Balance Sheet:

The Balance Sheet shall give scheme wise particulars of its assets and liabilities. It shall also disclose, inter alia,
accounting policies, valuation of investments and other important areas.

The balance-sheet shall disclose under each type of investment, the aggregate carrying value and market value of
assets below investment grade.

The Balance Sheet shall disclose the per unit Net Asset Value (NAV) as at the end of the accounting year.

The Balance Sheet shall give against each item, the corresponding figures as at the end of the preceding financial
year.

The notes to the Balance Sheet shall disclose the following information regarding investments:-
(@) all investments shall be grouped under the major classification given in the balance sheet;

(b) under each major classification, the total value of investments falling under each major industry group (which
constitutes not less than 5 per cent. of the total investment in the major classification) shall be disclosed
together with the percentage thereof in relation to the total investment within the classification;

(c) astatement of investments showing the name of the companies in which investments have been made and the
aggregate investments made in the associates and group companies of the pension fund, if any;

(d) if brokerage, custodial fees or any other charges for services are paid to or payable to any entity in which the
PF or its major shareholders have a substantial interest (being not less than 10% of the paid up capital), the
amounts debited to the Revenue Account or amounts treated as cost of investments in respect of such
services shall be separately disclosed together with details of the interest of the pension fund or its major
shareholders;

(e) the basis on which fees have been paid to pension fund and the computation thereof;

(f) aggregate value of purchases and sales of investments excluding temporary deployment of funds during the
year and expressed as a percentage of average daily net asset value;

(9) movement in unit capital shall be stated,;

(h) the total income of the scheme shall include unrealised depreciation or appreciation on investments.

Provisions on account of investments classified as default shall not be included under provisions on the liability
side of the balance sheet, but shall be shown as a deduction from the aggregate value of its relevant asset.

(vii) Disclosure shall be made of all contingent liabilities showing separately uncalled liability on partly paid shares

and other commitments with specifying details.

Major Headings of Balance Sheet

ASSETS SIDE OF THE BALANCE SHEET:

The assets of the balance sheet shall be grouped into the following categories:

= |nvestments
= Deposits
= Other Current Assets

Schedule of the Cateqgories:

INVESTMENTS

The following types of investments shall be separately disclosed (only those heads under which investments is
permitted to be kept):

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

Equity shares;
Preference shares;
Debentures and Bonds;

Central and State Government Securities including bonds guaranteed/fully serviced by Government;
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(v) Commercial Paper;

(vi) Treasury Bills

(vii) AIF’s (Category I and Category II Only)/REITs/INVITs/Asset Backed Securities/ mortgage based securities
(viii) Basel Il Tier | Bonds

(ix) Others-Mutual Funds, TREPS etc.

1. DEPOSITS

(i) Deposits with scheduled banks;
(ii) Others

1. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(i)  Balances with banks in current/savings account;
(if) Cash in hand;

(iif) Sundry Debtors;

(iv) Contracts for sale of investments;

(v) Outstanding and accrued income;

(vi) Advance, Deposits etc.;

(vii) Shares/debentures/ others application money pending allotment (for this age wise disclosure is to be made along
with security name);

(viii) Dividend Receivable
(ix) Redemption receivable on investments classified as default
Less: Provision for assets investments classified as default
(x) Others.
LIABILITIES SIDE OF THE BALANCE SHEET
The Liabilities side of the balance sheet shall be divided into the following groups
= Unit Capital,
»= Reserves & Surplus;
= Current Liabilities and Provisions.
Schedule of the Categories:
Unit Capital

(i) Initial capital,
(ii) Unit capital (including number of units and face value per unit).
Reserves & surplus
(i) Unit Premium Reserve;
(ii) General reserve;
(iii) Any other reserve (disclosing its nature) including Unrealised Appreciation account;

Opening balance, transfer from/to reserve, closing balance shall be separately disclosed for each above type of
reserve.

Current liabilities and provisions
Distinguishing between the following current liabilities and provisions
Current liabilities:
(i) Sundry creditors;

(if) Contract for purchase of investments;
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Provisions (Indicate nature):
(i) Redemption payable
(if) TDS payable
V. Contingent Liabilities
(i) Commitments
(ii) Others (specify details)
(111).  Contents of Revenue Account:

(i) The Revenue Account shall give scheme wise particulars of the income, expenditure and surplus for each
scheme.

(i) If profit on sale of investments shown in the Revenue Account includes profit/loss on inter-scheme transfer
of investments within the same pension fund the aggregate of such profit recognised as realised, shall be
disclosed separately without being clubbed with the profit/loss on sale of investments to third parties.

(iif) The Revenue Account shall indicate the appropriation of surplus/deficit by way of transfer to reserves on a
net basis.

(iv) The following disclosures shall also be made in the Revenue Account:

(a) provision for aggregate value on account of investments classified as default, outstanding and accrued
income;

(b) custodian, NPS Trust, Trustee Bank and central recordkeeping agency charges
(c) depository and settlement charges, stamp duty and brokerage on equity transactions

(d) Total income and expenditure expressed as a percentage of average net assets, calculated on a daily
basis.

Major Headings of Revenue Account
Income:
- Dividend;
- Interest;
- Profit on sale/redemption of investments (other than inter-scheme transfer/sale);
- Profit on inter-scheme transfer/sale of investments;
- Unrealized gain on appreciation in investments
- Other income (indicating nature).
Expenses and losses:
- Unrealized losses in value of investments
- Provision for investments classified as default;
- Loss on sale/redemption of investments (other than inter-scheme transfer/sale);
- Loss on inter-scheme transfer/sale of investments;
- Investment Management fees;
- NPS Trust reimbursement of expenses;
- Depository and Settlement charges;
- Brokerage on equity transactions
- Stamp Duty
- Custodian fees;
- Central recordkeeping agency fees
Less: Amount recovered by sale of units for central recordkeeping agency charges
- Others
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Note :

Accounting policy in respect of recognition of revenue and income from investments (including dividend and interest)
shall be disclosed by way of a note.

(V). Scheme Auditor’s Report
(i) The auditor shall state whether;-

(@ he has obtained all information and explanations which, to the best of his knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of his audit;

(b) the Balance Sheet and the Revenue Account are in agreement with the books of account of the scheme;
(c) whether proper books of accounts of each scheme have been maintained;

(d) all transaction expenses in excess of the limits contractually agreed to/approved by Authority are borne by
the pension fund and are not charged to the Net Asset Value;

(e) The Balance Sheet and Revenue Account of the Scheme dealt with by this Report comply with these
regulations and the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, to the extent made applicable
by the regulations.

(ii) The auditor shall give his opinion as to whether;-

(@) the Balance Sheet gives a true and fair view of the scheme wise state of affairs of NPS/APY at the end of the
financial year,

(b) the Revenue Account gives a true and fair view of the scheme wise surplus/deficit of NPS/APY for the
financial year.

(iii) The Auditor shall further certify that;-

(@ Investments have been valued in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Authority;

(b) Transaction and claims/ fee raised by different entities are in accordance with the
guidelines issued by the Authority;

(iv) The Auditor shall also submit a separate report called as “NPS Scheme - Detailed Audit Report” (to be
referred as NPS-DAR) along with the scheme audit report / scheme accounts for a particular financial year. A
copy of the said Audit Report should be given to the Board of Pension Fund. The contents of the report
would be based on the format prescribed by Authority/NPS Trust. The Board of Directors of Pension Fund
should submit a Compliance Report within two months of the receipt of Detailed Audit Report. NPS-DAR
will be a combined report for all the NPS Schemes. The Auditor will give a certificate in the following
format;

To

The Board of Trustees
National Pension System Trust
New Delhi

We have conducted the Detailed Audit of under mentioned schemes of National Pension System of
.......................................... (The ‘Pension Fund’) for the Period/Year ........... as per the check list provided
to us by the National Pension System Trust and hereby submit the NPS-DAR for your perusal.

Schemes Year/Period
Scheme Name From Ist April ...to 31st March ......
Scheme Name From Ist April ...to 31st March ......
Scheme Name From Ist April ...to 31st March ......
Scheme Name From Ist April ...to 31st March ......

Scheme Name From 1st April ...to 31st March ......
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Scheme Name From 1st April ...to 31st March ......
Scheme Name From 1st April ...to 31st March ......

We report as under:

1.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of accounts has been maintained for each scheme.

Our procedures covered all the areas listed in the recommended NPS-DAR Checklist (Enclosed, duly signed by
us under reference to this certificate.)

Further, all deviations with regards to applicable accounting principles, regulations and guidelines for
preparation of accounts are being disclosed in the attached report.

Based on our test checking of the records maintained by the pension fund, we certify as under:

1. The system, procedures and safeguards followed by the pension fund are adequate.

2. The terms and conditions of registration of Pension Fund regulations, Investment Management Agreement
signed with the National Pension System Trust are being complied with by the Pension Fund.

3. Directions issued by the Authority from time to time or any other statutory requirements have been followed.

4.  Affairs of the pension fund are being conducted in a manner which is in the interest of the subscribers.

5. All transaction expenses in excess of the limits contractually agreed to / approve by Authority are borne by the
pension fund and are not charged to NAV.

Yours truly

For

(Name of Firm)

Chartered Accountants

Firm

Regn No...

........ (Name of Partner)

Partn

Mem

er

bership No:

Place:

Date:
(V).

Key Statistics

Name of the Pension Fund :

Key Statistics for the year / period ended

Parti

1. NAV per unit (Rs.):

Scheme A Scheme B

culars As at As at As at As at
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Open

High

Low

End

2. Closing Assets Under Management (Rs. in
Lakh)




50 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I1I—SEC.4]

End

Average Assets Under Management (AAuUM)

3.Gross income as % of AAuM

4. Expense Ratio:

a. Total Expense as % of AAuM (scheme wise)

b. Management Fee as % of AAuM (Scheme
wise)

5. Net Income as a percentage of AAuM

6. Portfolio turnover ratio
7. Returns: (%)

a. Last One Year

Benchmark

b. Since Inception (provide scheme launch date)

Benchmark

¢. Compounded Annual Growth Rate (%)

Last 3 years

Last 5 years

Last 10 years

1. Gross income = amount against (A) in the Revenue account i.e. Income.

2. Net income = amount against (C) in the Revenue account i.e. NET REALISED GAINS / (LOSSES) FOR
THE YEAR / PERIOD

3. Portfolio Turnover = Lower of sales or purchase (excluding temporary deployment) divided by the Average
AUM for the year/period.

4. AAUM=Average daily net assets

5 'Compounded Annual Growth Rate is to be calculated based on the following formula: % = (1 + cumulative
return) i/n -1 (where n = 365/no. of days and i is the period)

6. NAV= (Market value of Investments held by scheme + value of current assets - value of current liability
and provisions, if any) / (no. of units at the valuation date (before creation/ redemption of units)

7. Benchmark = Scheme Benchmark Returns as disclosed by NPS Trust for scheme performance evaluation

(VI). Directors Responsibility Statement
The Directors, Chief Operating Officer/Head of Operations of the Pension Fund shall certify that:-

1. The Scheme Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFRDA (Pension Fund)
Regulations, 2015 and guidelines issued by the Authority

2. In the preparation of the annual scheme accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed to
the extent made applicable by the regulations along with proper explanations relating to material departures;

3. The accounting policies have been selected/applied consistently and have made judgments that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Schemes managed by
the PF for the financial year ended 31st March, 20XX and of the surplus/deficit of the Schemes for that
period;

4. Proper and sufficient care has been taken to maintain the accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the PFRDA Act, 2013 and underlying regulations / guidelines for safeguarding the assets of the
Scheme, subscribers and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

5. Internal financial controls have been laid down and are being followed for the Scheme, operations and that
such internal controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and
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6. Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

(vVI1). ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET AND REVENUE ACCOUNT FORMAT
ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET

Name of the Pension Fund :

Key Statistics for the year / period ended

Scheme A Scheme B
Particulars As at As at As at As at
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
LIABILITIES
1 Unit Capital
2 Reserves & Surplus
2.1 Unit Premium Reserve
2.2 General Reserve
2.3 Unrealised Appreciation Reserve
2.4 Others
3 Current Liabilities & Provisions

3.1 default

Provision for investments classified as

3.2 Other Current Liabilities & Provisions

TOTAL
ASSETS
1 Investments
1.1 Equity
1.2 Debenture/Bonds
1.3 Alternate Investments
1.4 Government Securities
15 Money Market
1.6 Others
1.7 Total Investments
2 Other Current Assets

2.1 Cash & Bank Balance

2.2 Others
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TOTAL

ABRIDGED REVENUE ACCOUNT

Name of the Pension Fund :

Key Statistics for the year / period ended

Scheme A Scheme B
As at As at As at As at
Current Previous | Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
1 INCOME
11 Dividend
1.2 Interest
1.3 Realised Gains on inter-scheme transfers
14 Realised Gains on sale / redemption of investments
15 Other Income
Sub-Total (A)
2 EXPENSES
2.1 Realised Losses on Inter scheme transfer
2.2 Realised Losses on sale / redemption of investments
2.3 Investment Management fees
24 Custodian fees
2.5 NPS Trust expense reimbursement
2.6 Other operating expenses
Sub-Total (B)
NET REALISED GAINS/(LOSSES) FOR THE PERIOD
’ (A-B=C)
4 Net Chapge in Unrealised Depreciation/ appreciation in
value of investments
5 NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

Notes to Accounts as specified below

Guidance Note

1. Provide details of significant items indicating nature & corresponding amount in Notes to accounts.

2. Unrealised Depreciation/Appreciation to be computed by each asset category and shown on an aggregated basis.
This should take into account change in unrealised depreciation/ appreciation for the year/period and write back of
unrealised depreciation/ appreciation provided in the previous year end.

(VIIT). NOTES TO ACCOUNTS - ANNEXURE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AND REVENUE ACCOUNT
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Name of the scheme :

Notes to Accounts - Annexure to the Abridged Balance Sheet and Revenue Account for the Year / Period ended

Sl Particulars

1 | Investments:-
1.1. Note confirming that Investments of the Schemes are in the name of the National Pension System Trust.
1.2. Open Position of derivatives (outstanding market value & % to Net Assets as of the Year end).
1.3. Investments in Associates and Group Companies (provide details of issuer, nature of investments, amount,
aggregate investments under all scheme managed)
1.4. Open position of Securities Borrowed and / or Lend by the scheme.
1.5. Details of investments rated as below investment grade and/or classified as default (provide details of issuer,
nature of investment, purchase cost, value of investment (after haircut), amount of provision held, amount of
haircut applied on accrued interest, amount received (interest & principal) for above investment)
1.6. Aggregate Unrealised Gain / Loss as at the end of the Financial Year / Period and percentage to net assets.
1.7. Aggregate Value of Purchase and Sale (excluding temporary deployment of funds) with Percentage to
average assets under management.

2 Details of Transaction with Associates and Group Companies (provide details of name of associate, nature of
payment and amount)

3 Unit Capital movement during the year ended / period ended. Scheme wise details of movement in units -
opening, subscription, redemption, closing. Indicate scheme wise face value of units.

4 Prior Year Comparison - a suitable statement that prior year figures have been reclassified whenever necessary
to conform to current years' presentation.

5 Contingent Liability. Provide details of nature and amount.

Guidance Note:

Provide corresponding previous year/period figures for all the above disclosures.

(I1X).

Accounting Policies

The Accounting Policies related to schemes has to be complied by pension fund for preparation of financial statements
and calculation of Net Assets Value:

1.

The Pension Fund should maintain their scheme-wise books of account on an accrual basis. Investment
should be stated as per the valuation guidelines issued by the Authority, at the Balance Sheet date or date of
computation of asset value or Net Asset Value (NAV).

Investments should be tallied with the custodian records and units should be tallied with Central
Recordkeeping Agency records on a daily basis.

All allowable expenses and incomes accrued upto the valuation date, which are considered for computation
of asset value/ NAV, major expenses like investment management fees and other allowable periodic
expenses like custodian charges, NPS Trust expenses reimbursement etc, should be accrued on a day-to-day
basis. The period to be considered for accrual will be the financial year.

Dividend income earned by a scheme should be recognised, not on the date the dividend is declared, but on
the date the share is quoted on an ex-dividend basis.

In respect of all interest-bearing investments, income must be accrued on a day to day basis. Therefore, when
such investments are purchased, interest paid for the period from the last interest due date upto the date of
purchase must not be treated as a cost of purchase but must be debited to Interest Recoverable Account.
Similarly, interest received at the time of sale for the period from the last interest due date upto the date of
sale must not be treated as an addition to sale value but must be credited to Interest Recoverable Account.

In determining the holding cost of investments and the gains or loss on sale of investments, the “weighted
average cost” method must be followed.

Transactions for purchase or sale of investments should be recognised as of the trade date and not as of the
settlement date, so that the effect of all investments traded during a financial year are recorded and reflected
in the financial statements for that year. Where investment transactions take place outside the stock market,
for example, acquisitions through private placement or purchases or sales through private treaty, the
transaction should be recorded in the event of a purchase, as of the date on which the scheme obtains an
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enforceable obligation to pay the price or, in the event of a sale, when the scheme obtains an enforceable
right to collect the proceeds of sale or an enforceable obligation to deliver the instruments sold.

8. Bonus shares to which the scheme becomes entitled should be recognised only when the original shares on
which the bonus entitlement accrues are traded on the stock exchange on an ex-bonus basis. Similarly, rights
entitlements should be recognized only when the original shares on which the right entitlement accrues are
traded on the stock exchange on an ex-rights basis.

9. The cost of investment shall include only the stamp charges and permissible equity brokerage thereon. For
privately placed debt instruments, any front-end discount offered to the pension fund shall be excluded from
the cost of the investment

10. All taxes which are leviable and actually paid shall be charged to the NAV of the Fund as permitted by the
Authority and be borne by the Subscriber. Any subsequent refund on this account, if any, should be added to
the scheme/fund as income.

11. The Investment Management Fee is inclusive of all transaction related charges except brokerage on equity
transactions as permitted and custodian charges alongwith applicable taxes thereon. The Investment
Management Fee is calculated on the daily assets managed by the pension fund. Fees payable to the
Authority shall not be charged to the scheme

12. In respect of investments below investment grade and investments classified as default, recognition,
classification and provisioning should be in compliance with the guidelines issued by the Authority.”

XLIV. 1In Schedule VIII (Banking and Central Recordkeeping Agreements) of the principal regulations, the
symbols, words and numerals, “See regulation 10(1)(c)” shall be substituted with “see regulation 10(1)(d)”.

XLV. After Part Il in Schedule X (Investment and Risk Management Committee) of the principal
regulations, the following shall be inserted, namely:

“Part 11
Audit Committee as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
Part IV

Nomination and remuneration committee as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013

XLVI. After Schedule XI (Investment management agreement format) of the principal regulations, a new
schedule XI1 (Illustration for calculation of scheme net asset value (NAV)) shall be inserted as follows:

“SCHEDULE XII

PENSION FUND REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (PENSION FUND)
REGULATIONS, 2015

[see regulation 18(2)]
ILLUSTRATION FOR CALCULATION OF SCHEME NET ASSET VALUE (NAV)

NAYV Calculation formula
Net Assets

NAV per unit =
P Qutstanding units

1. Net Assets: Market Value of investments held in scheme + current assets -current liability — contributions
receipts for the day

2. Current Liabilities: It includes payables towards allowable charges, redemption payable, funds to be paid
due to purchase of securities.

3. Current Assets: Funds to be received due to sale of securities, accrued interest, dividends, bank account
balance (including contribution receipts for the day) etc.

4. Market Value of Investment held by scheme: Value of the investments held in scheme derived as per the
valuation guidelines issued by the Authority.

5. Outstanding Units: Number of outstanding units at the valuation date (closing unit of previous ‘business
day”).

6. Contributions Receipts for the Day: The inflows (contributions) received for the day is not used for
calculating the net assets for the day as the units corresponding to such inflows are pending creation.

Example on NAV Calculation (illustrative purpose)
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Particulars Net assets before units’ Movement Net assets post units’
creation (Rs) (Rs) creation (Rs)

Market Value of Investments* 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Current Assets™ 5,00,000 5,00,000
Contributions Receipts for the Day (1,00,000) 1,00,000 -
Total Assets* 1,04,00,000 1,05,00,000
Current Liability* (1,000) (1,000)
Net Assets 1,03,99,000 1,04,99,000
Outstanding units 9,99,000 9606.6930 10,08,607.6930
Net asset value per unit 10.4094 10.4094

* value of investments remaining unchanged during the day.”
Dr. DEEPAK MOHANTY, Chairperson

[ADVT.-1/4/Exty./750/2023-24]

Note: The Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension Fund) Regulations, 2015 were
published vide Notification No. PFRDA/12/RGL/139/9, on the 19" May, 2015 in the Gazette of India, Extraordinary,
Part 111, Section 4, No. 168, and were subsequently amended by the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development
Authority  (Pension  Fund) (First Amendment) Regulations, 2016 published vide Notification  No.
PFRDA/12/RGL/139/9, on the 8" September, 2016 in the Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part 111, Section 4, No.
343, the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension Fund) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2020 published vide Notification No. PFRDA/12/RGL/139/9, on the 5" February, 2020 in the Gazette of India,
Extraordinary, Part I11, Section 4, No. 48, the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension Fund)
(Third Amendment) Regulations, 2020 published vide Notification No. PFRDA/12/RGL/139/9, on the 14™ May,
2020 in the Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part Ill, Section 4, No. 169, the Pension Fund Regulatory and
Development Authority (Pension Fund) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 published vide Notification No.
PFRDA/12/RGL/139/9, on the 1% April, 2021 in the Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part 111, Section 4, No. 139, the
Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension Fund) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021
published vide Notification No. PFRDA/12/RGL/139/9, on the 25™ May, 2021 in the Gazette of India, Extraordinary,
Part 111, Section 4, No. 202 and the Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension Fund) (Sixth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 published vide Notification No. PFRDA/12/RGL/139/9, on the 15™ July, 2021 in the
Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part I11, Section 4, No. 286.
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